






      
 

Middleton City Council Special Meeting October 5, 2022 Page 1 
 

 
MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL – SPECIAL MEETING 

OCTOBER 5, 2022 
 
The Middleton City Council Meeting was called to order on October 5, 2022, at 4:33 p.m. by 
Mayor Steve Rule.  
 
Roll Call:  
City Council: Council President Kiser, Council Members Huggins, and Murray were present. 
Council Member O’Meara was absent. City Attorney Mark Hilty and City Administrator Becky 
Crofts were present. 
 
Action Items  

A. Approve Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to move into Executive Session. Motion seconded 
by Councilman Huggins.   
 
Executive Session started at 4:35 p.m.  
 

Executive Session:    
74-206(d) To consider records that are exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, 

title 74, Idaho Code. 

74-206(f) To communicate with legal counsel for the public agency to discuss the legal 
ramifications of and legal options for pending litigation, or controversies not yet being litigated 
but imminently likely to be litigated. 

Executive Session closed at 5:26 p.m.  

No decisions were made, only discussion took place during the Executive Session. 
 
Adjourn: Mayor adjourned the Special Meeting at 5:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
ATTEST:      Rob Kiser, Council President   
 
      
Amber Day, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: October 19, 2022 
 
 

 

 

 



      
 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 5, 2022 Page 1 
 

MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL 
OCTOBER 5, 2022 

 
The Middleton City Council Meeting was called to order on October 5, 2022, at 5:34 p.m. by 
Mayor Steve Rule.  
 
Roll Call:  
City Council: Council President Kiser, Council Members O’Meara, Council Member Huggins and 
Murray were present. 
Mayor Steve Rule, City Attorney Mark Hilty, City Administrator Becky Crofts, Planning Official 
Roberta Stewart, and Deputy Clerks Jennica Reynolds and Amber Day were present. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: Jim Taylor 
 
Action Items  

A. Approve Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the agenda as posted September 30, 
2022, at 4:45 p.m.  Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously 
by all the board members present. 
 

Action Items:       
1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) (Action Items) 

a. Consider approving minutes for City Council September 21, joint and regular 
meeting. 

b. Consider ratifying payroll for September 23, 2022, in the amount of $134,981.87 
c. Consider approving accounts payable through September 30, 2022, in the 

amount of $ $415,648.66. 
d. Consider approving the Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law & Order (FCO) for 

the Hidden Mills Subdivision. 
 

Mayor Steve Rule called the items and stated he had reviewed the accounts payable. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 a-d. 
Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara.   
 
Roll Call: Council President Kiser, Council Member Huggins, Council Member Murray, 
and Council Member O’Meara. Motion approved unanimously.  

 
2. Swearing in of new police officer Nicholas Randall. – Mayor Rule 

 
Mayor Rule called and Swore in Officer Nicholas Randall. 
 

3. Consider approving the final plat application for Stonehaven Estates Subdivision, 
Phase No. 6, including request for approval of $4,500 surety to cover unfinished 
landscaping. – Roberta Stewart 
 
Mayor Rule called the item and the City P&Z Official, Roberta Stewart presented 
Stonehaven Estates Subdivision No. 6 Final Plat. The plat is in compliance with all city 
codes and standards. The developer has bonded for $4,500 which is 150% of the 
estimated cost to cover all unfinished landscaping. This type of bonding is allowed per 



      
 

Middleton City Council Meeting October 5, 2022 Page 2 
 

City Code.  
 
Motion:  Motioned by Council President Kiser to approve final plat application for 
Stonehaven Estates Subdivision, Phase No. 6, including request for approval of $4,500 
surety to cover unfinished landscaping. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. 
Mayor called for Roll Call Vote. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  Council President Kiser, Council Member Murray, Council Member 
Huggins and Council Member O’Meara.  Motion approved unanimously. 
 
Public Comments 

• Jim Taylor has concerns about new apartments coming in, would rather have 
single homes built in Middleton. He thinks single homes make policing in the city 
easier. 

• Mike Grafe has concerns about sidewalks and frontage along Willis and Hartley 
adjacent to the Stonehaven Subdivision.  

 
Mayor and Council Comments 
 
Council Member O’Meara said that the Cemetery District would like help getting a 
crosswalk painted/installed from the Sexton’s Office to the other side of the Cemetery 
across Cemetery Rd. Mayor Rule said they are working with Civil Engineers to determine 
the safest location for the crosswalk.  

 
Adjourn: Mayor Rule adjourned the city council meeting at 6:02 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
             
ATTEST:      Rob Kiser, Council President   
 
      
Amber Day, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: October 19, 2022 
 
 

 





Crrv or MDoLeroN
PO Box 487, 1103 W. MarN Sr

MTDDLEToN,ID 83644
208 585-3133. 208-58s-9601 FAx

!ll!!e\.q!!qc\!1!,!!-t

ADMNISTRATION

BI,ER WINE
APPLr( ATloN,/LI('ENsE

ApplicantName: P?ri f ,6LjctnS
BusinessName: )L{' bt,X acr'll

Business Address (Sheet{P.O. Box/City/Zip): ZO( \r",h,ra,rh 5-

YEAR June 1, 2018- May 31, 2019 lOrnCrUSrOtLy'

g Nor Lictnse I orauo,
E' Renewal

S.{LE FOR ON-PRf, \IISE CONSUI\IPTION

() ) BEER (s2oo.oo)
( .. ) wlNE ($200.00)

SALE FOR OFT'-PREM ISE CONST]NIP'I'ION

( ) BEER (550.00)
( ) \\'rNE ($200.00)

LICENSE

#

Business phone: 2D< 5*5.3D41 otherPhone: 5t 5 . 3b( ttl ?K

Emairaddress: )Vebax cp, QE 4* ,\O , 4i,n-

C Anuch utpy o! upplication fot Stdte license, inclading a copl' rl site and lloor plans suhriitted vilh stotc appliattiotL

a Afioch

Dale

Beveruge Licenses before a Cit! licefise will be issued.

fu'Vtlct

LICENSE
Application Approved by City Council on (date):
Application Denied:
License is hereby issued this _ day of

City Clerk

Notes:

20 _.

MailingAddress(S treetlP.o.BoxlciqtZ*1, ]3q .>' L..r'",5irl .t Ln r'i\,il /, Ile ft|,



2021-2022 RETAIL ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE

CANYON COUNTY,ID
STATE OF IDAHO

202t284

This is to certfy, that Marwood, INC

dba:208 Burger Q

is licensed hereby as a retailer ofalcohol beverage, as stated below, to the provisions of Title 23, Idaho Code and
the laws ofthe State ofldaho and regulations and ordinances ofBoard of County Commissioners in regard to the
sale of alcoholic beverage at: 308 W MAIN ST., MIDDLETON, ID 83644

Beer

aaaaaaaaaa*

Elottled or canncd, consumed ON premises

WINE by thc drinkr (This covers Rctail & tsy the Drink)

aaaaaaaaaa

License valid until Mav 31, 2022

s75.00

$100.00

Signature ofLicensce or Oflicer of Corporation

APPROVED by the Board of County Commissioners this '? llitkny of i, i Ii, , ,:li ,{
Mail To: 23412 LANSING LN, MIDDLETON, ID 83644

Ch,J"a/"^.-e-
Clcrk

(l HIS LIC]]NSE MUST BH (1)NSPICUOUSLY



,gt* "/at/"/-- ldaho State Police -
Cycle Tracking Number: 126261

Premises Number: 2C-31045 Retail AlcohO! BeVerage LiCenSe License Year: 2022

License Number: 31045

Acceptance of a license by a reta.iler shall constitute knowledge of and agreement lo operate by and in
accordance to the Alcohol Beverage Code, Title 23. Only the licensee herein specified,chall use this license.
Coun+' dnd cifi' licenscs are also required i order to operate.

This is to certify, that Marwood, lnc

doing business as: 208 Burger Q

is licensed to sell alcoholic beverages as stated below at:
308 W. Main St, Middleton, Canyon County

Liquor
Beer
Wine by the bottle
Wine by the glass
Kegs to go

Growlers
Restaurant
On-premises consumption
Multipurpose arena
Plaza

TOTAL FEE: $0.00

Signature of Licensee, Corporate Officer, LLC Member or Partner

MARWOOD, INC
208 BURGER Q
23412 LANSING LN

MIDDLETON, ID 83644

Mailinq Address

License Valid: 0610112021 -0513112022

No
Yes $0.00
No
Yes $0.00
No
No
Yes $0.00
Yes $0.00
No
No

Expires: 0513112022 E1+#HEI

uJo
UJ

9
J
9.
-F
l!o
t
IIJ
l!oz
t]-
uo
UJJ
o
to
lJ-
uJo
a
uJ
al,t
uJ

uJt
IU
uJo

ABC FORM NO ABC 03



' {:4 1:

l/we, the undersigned,

Alcoh0l License No.:

Alcoao! Beverage Cantrol
700 S. Stratford Dr. lite l'15

Meridian, lD 83642
Phone: (208) 884-1060

AFFIDAVIT - RELEASE OF LICENSE

regarding herein named license:

: Premises lD No.:

doing business as . loiated in the city ol

Ccur:ty of State of ldaho. transferred cn ahis dav of

20*__. the use of said license to the lollowino person{s) or entitv (new applicant name(s)):

W
State Police

Nare Address

Name Address

Naane Address

DiSCLAIMER: This affidavit cannot be construEd to alfect any agraements botwoan ,ssignor(s) and assignee(s),

Assrgnor's Signature(s):

0n th,s __," __day of
ihe $lale of

20 __., b+iore me, the undersigned, a notary public in and tor
personally appeared

known to me to be the person(s) whose name(s) islare subscribed to the foregoing inslrument and acknowledged to me
that is)he/they executed the same-

Notary Public
(Seal) Residing at

EH 10.C2-07 Affidavi: of Release of License9/2009

My Commission Expires





 

 
IDAHO CONTRACTOR LICENSE # C 2854     OREGON CCB #221860 

PUBLIC WORKS LICENSE # PWC-C-11544-UNLIMITED-4 (16000, 02500) 
UL 508A INDUSTRIAL CONTROL PANEL LICENSE # E 312625 

MSHA CERTIFIED - ID NUMBER # N 760 
WEB SITE: www.ameelectric.com 

September 26, 2022 
 

To:   CITY OF MIDDLETON 

Ref:  SOUTH DEWEY POLE LIGHT AND BASE 
         A.M.E. PROPOSAL #2022-770      

A.M.E. Electric, Inc. is pleased to present this proposal for your review and consideration.   
INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL: 

1. Demo existing concrete pole base and pole light 
2. Provide and install new concrete pole base  
3. Provide and install new 24’ decorative historical pole light to match existing  
4. Provide and install necessary conduit and wire from junction box to pole 
5. Terminate and test 

 

NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL: 
1. Right of way permit  
2. Traffic control  

 

TOTAL PROPOSAL AS DETAILED……………………………….………………$11,200.00 
 
A.M.E. Electric, Inc. appreciates this opportunity and we strive to earn your future business.  
Should you have any questions, or require any additional information please feel free to contact 
us. 
Sincerely, 
 
Jamie J. Winters 
Owner / Estimator 

JAMIE J. WINTERS 
jamie@ameelectric.com  

 

MIKE S. TENHULZEN  
mike@ameelectric.com  

http://www.ameelectric.com/




 

 
IDAHO CONTRACTOR LICENSE # C 2854     OREGON CCB #221860 

PUBLIC WORKS LICENSE # PWC-C-11544-UNLIMITED-4 (16000, 02500) 
UL 508A INDUSTRIAL CONTROL PANEL LICENSE # E 312625 

MSHA CERTIFIED - ID NUMBER # N 760 
WEB SITE: www.ameelectric.com 

September 13, 2022 
 

To:   CITY OF MIDDLETON 

Ref:  HWY 44 AT SUBWAY POLE LIGHT AND BASE 
         A.M.E. PROPOSAL #2022-771        

A.M.E. Electric, Inc. is pleased to present this proposal for your review and consideration.   
INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL: 

1. Demo existing concrete pole base, sidewalk panel and pole light 
2. Provide and install new concrete pole base  
3. Provide sidewalk patch back  
4. Provide and install new 18’ decorative historical pole light to match existing  
5. Provide and install necessary conduit and wire from junction box to pole 
6. Terminate and test 

 

NOT INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL: 
1. Right of way permit  
2. Traffic control  

 

TOTAL PROPOSAL AS DETAILED……………………………….………………$11,000.00 
 
A.M.E. Electric, Inc. appreciates this opportunity and we strive to earn your future business.  
Should you have any questions, or require any additional information please feel free to contact 
us. 
Sincerely, 
 
Jamie J. Winters 
Owner / Estimator 

JAMIE J. WINTERS 
jamie@ameelectric.com  

 

MIKE S. TENHULZEN  
mike@ameelectric.com  

http://www.ameelectric.com/




 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
                           Middleton City Council 
 
 

 

 

 
Pheasant Heights Subdivision  

Snapshot Summary 
 

               
 

A. City Council Public Hearing: October 19, 2022  

B. Project Description: Residential subdivision with 147 single family buildable lots and 12 
common lots on 54.06 acres of vacant land located at 0 Emmett Road and 13236 Greenwell 
Lane (Tax Parcels Nos. R34445012A2, R34445012A0, R34445012B0 and 34445012A1). 

C. Application Requests: Applicant, Amy Johnson of Infinite Real Estate, has submitted three 
applications: (1) Annexation/Rezone, (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement. 

D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The project parcel is comprised of four parcels with 
two homestead sites. Most of the land is vacant and has been used for farming for a number 
of years. The property is currently located in Canyon County and zoned C1 (Neighborhood 
Commercial) and R1 (Single-Family Residential). The property to the east is within City limits 
and zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential). The properties to the south, west and north are 
County property zoned residential R-1, R-R and Agricultural. 
 

                                           



             
        

2 
 

E. City Services: City Water is located in Emmett Road adjacent to the Project.  Sewer is 
located near the 9th Street roundabout and will be extended northward along Emmett Road.  A 
sewer lift station is required to serve the site. (See location highlighted in yellow.) Developer 
has agreed to build an over-sized regional lift station if requested by City.    
    

                                                          

 

F. Traffic, Access & Streets:  
 
Primary access to the subdivision will be through 9th Street to the south.  Access on Emmett 
Road will be right in/right out only. The plat shows three stub roads along the western border 
for future extension of the City to the west.  
 

                       

Water 

Sewer 



             
        

3 
 

Developer will be required to improve, at its own cost, the 50’ half road portion of Emmett 
Road as well at the extension of 9th Street from Faison Subdivision through the project parcel.  
 
Middleton requires Development “to pay for itself” so the taxpayers will not be burdened with 
the cost of developing roads and infrastructure.  In light of this, Developer/builders will pay 
$742,350.00 in Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fees by the time all 147 residential building 
permits are issued ($147 x $5050).   
 
Applicant has also completed a Traffic Study, and pursuant to the impact percentages set forth 
in the study, Applicant will pay $138,563.00 in additional “pro-rata traffic fees” pursuant to 
MCC 5-4-3. These fees cover the development’s direct impact on intersections near the 
project that are not already included in the Mid-Star program. Payment of this fee should be a 
condition of final plat approval for Phase 1.   
 
Developer/Builder will pay a total of $880,913.00 toward traffic improvements in and around 
the City of Middleton. 
  

G. Traffic Signal at Emmett Road & State Hwy 44:  Much of the project’s traffic will use the 
intersection of Emmett Road and Hwy 44. That intersection is a failing intersection. For that 
reason, City cannot collect Mid-Star Transportation Fees for the future construction of a traffic 
signal at that intersection. (Per state law, impact fees can only be used for “future” impacts; 
they cannot be used to fix an existing deficiency.)   
 
City also does not have sufficient funds at its disposal or in its budget (approximately $1.7 
million) to design and construct the traffic signal.   
 
ITD has stated recently that it has resumed its environmental studies of the Hwy 44 corridor, 
and it will not complete those studies for seven to 10 years.  Until the studies are completed, 
ITD cannot design or install any permanent traffic control at Emmett & Hwy 44.  Therefore, any 
help from ITD is about seven to 10 years away. 
 
However, a number of private developers, including the Pheasant Heights Developer, are 
collaborating together and working with ITD, CHD4 and the City to design and construct an 
interim traffic signal at the Emmett/44 intersection. The private developers are offering to 
design and construct the traffic signal at no cost to the City or taxpayers.  They have hired 
Kittelson Engineering to perform a traffic study on Emmett Road & Hwy 44, and an 
engineering firm has begun designing an interim traffic signal for presentation to ITD, CHD4 
and the City.  
 
This collaboration between private developers has been incorporated into the proposed 
Development Agreement (“DA”) for Pheasant Heights.  In a nutshell, the DA notes the private 
collaboration and provides that the Pheasant Heights Developer cannot submit for any building 
permits until the Developers or other entities construct the interim traffic control at Emmett & 
Hwy 44.   
 
Therefore, even if City Council approves this project, no one will be allowed to build and move 
into a home until the intersection of Emmett Road & Hwy 44 is improved with a sufficient traffic 
control. 
 



             
        

4 
 

H. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: No pathways or amenities are required by the 
Comprehensive Plan’s Transportation, Schools & Recreation Map.  However, Developer has 
proposed a large park with micro-paths, playground, open grassy area, and picnic area. 
                

                                    
 
Developer has provided 5.5% open space, which exceeds the 5% minimum required by MCC 
5-4-10-10.  
 
Developer will also construct a missing portion of sidewalk located outside of the project area 
in order to complete the sidewalk that has been left unfinished for a number of years.  This off-
site work will assist children in reaching the crosswalk at Willis & Emmett so they can travel 
safely to Middleton High School. 

              
   
 

I. Schools:  This proposed project is part of the Middleton School District #134.  At the 
September 12, 2022, Planning & Zoning Meeting, Superintendent Marc Gee gave a 
presentation on the status of the School District.  He reported that Heights Elementary is at 
134% capacity. Mill Creek Elementary is at 123% capacity, and other schools in the District 
are nearing capacity.  
 



             
        

5 
 

When asked what the District intends to do now that the recent school bond has failed, 
Superintendent Gee indicated that they have some tools and solutions at their disposal. They 
are currently considering the following: 
 

1. Re-drawing the boundary for elementary schools so they can move children around to 
better equalize the capacity and population of each school. 

2. Implementing year-round school. (He emphasized that they are simply exploring this 
option.) 

3. Implementing a.m./p.m. school. 
4. Bringing in more portables and teachers. 
5. Adding on to, or remodeling, existing schools. 
6. Formulating more bonds that will be passed by the electorate in the future. 

 
MSD #134 Superintendent, Marc Gee, submitted a comment to this application after meeting 
with the Applicant. Among other things, Superintendent Gee noted that the traffic signal at 
Emmett & SH44 will help the school district because it will help control traffic along Hwy 44.  
He also noted that the very close proximity to Middleton High School will help with logistics 
and busing since students will be able to walk to school.  

  
J. Police:  If annexed into Middleton, the Middleton City Police will be responsible for patrolling 

and protecting the Pheasant Heights community.  The Developer/Builder will pay a Police 
Impact fee of $304.00 for each building permit it receives.  This fee is designed to cover the 
Subdivision’s proportionate impact on the police department. 

 
Of note, even if this subdivision is not approved and a County subdivision is built in its place, 
the Middleton Police Department will still patrol the area and probably be the first to respond to 
any incidences because of its proximity to an arterial road that is already patrolled by City 
Police.  This extra work in the County would be paid by Middleton residents without any impact 
fees being contributed by the Developer.  

 
K. Middleton Rural Fire District: The subject property is in the Middleton Rural Fire District. 

Developer/Builders will pay a Fire Protection Impact Fee of $849 at the time of each building 
permit to cover any impacts the subdivision will have on the Fire Protection agency.  
 

L. Annexation and Zone Change: Applicants are requesting that the 54 acre project parcel be 
annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change from County R-1, R-R, Agricultural, and 
C-1 to the City R-3 Zone (Single Family Residential). 
 
There are two findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the 
property must be contiguous to City limits and (2) the annexation is deemed to be an “orderly 
development” of the City allowing “efficient and economical extension” of City services such as 
sewer, water, police/fire protection and roadway system. (Idaho Code 50-222.) 
 
An application for rezone requires two findings before the Council can approve the application: 
(1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone 
request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho Code 67-6511) 
 
 
 
 



             
        

6 
 

STAFF FINDINGS:   
 
With respect to annexation, Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets the 1st criteria of 
contiguity.  
 
As to the 2nd annexation criteria, Planning Staff finds that the proposed annexation is orderly 
and an efficient extension of City Services.  Specifically, Police and Fire protection can be 
extended to serve the site because the additional protection will be covered by the impact fees 
that will be charged at Building Permit issuance. These fees are designed to cover 
Developer/Builders’ proportion of impact on the emergency response services.  
 
As to the extension of the transportation system & roadway, Developer will pay transportation 
impacts and pro-rata traffic fees to cover its proportion of impact on the roadway system.  
However, because Emmett Road & Hwy 44 is a failing intersection, none of the impact fees 
can be applied to that intersection.  Developer Applicant is attempting to address this situation 
through a DA provision that encourages private construction of a traffic control at the 
intersection…at no cost to taxpayers or City.  More importantly, the DA provides that 
Developer cannot build one home in the subdivision until the Emmett/SH44 traffic control is 
actually built.  This will delay any impact on the roadway system until a traffic control is in 
place to handle the added impacts.   
 
As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the 
City’s ability to deliver services for the reasons already stated directly above.   
 
A rezone also requires a finding that the project will not be in conflict with the City’s 
comprehensive plan.  Planning Staff finds that the Pheasant Heights Subdivision is not in 
conflict with the Comprehensive Plan, but rather, is in harmony with the Plan. See detailed 
discussion on this below in Section O.   
 

M. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows three phases of construction.  
 
The plat complies with all dimensional standards and codes of the City of Middleton, which 
means it meets the sole criteria required for an approval by City Council. No variances are 
requested.  
   

     
 

[A full-size copy of the preliminary plat is attached to this Staff Report as Exhibit “B”.) 



             
        

7 
 

 
N. Development Agreement: Annexation/Rezone generally require a Development Agreement. 

Applicant and City Staff have used the City’s form for the DA, and have added the following 
conditions of development to Section 3 of the DA:   

 
Sec. 3.1 & 3.2: Developer to complete all frontage/road improvements adjacent to the 
project. 
 
Sec. 3.3: Developer to construct project generally consistent with Concept Plan 
attached to the DA. 
 
Sec. 3.4: Developer to pay all pro-rata traffic fees prior to final plat approval for phase 
1. 
 
Sec. 3.4.1: Developer cannot obtain a building permit until a sufficient traffic control is 
constructed at Emmett & SH44.  If Developer participates in the design and 
construction of the site, Developer is entitled to a credit against any pro-rata traffic fees 
it must pay with respect to the Emmett intersection. 
 
Sec. 3.5: Developer shall build a sewer lift station to serve the project site. If the City, in 
its sole discretion, decides that a regional lift station is required, then Developer shall 
construct a regional lift station.  Developer shall be reimbursed for construction costs 
over and above its proportionate share via a latecomer’s fee as allowed by MCC 1-17-
1. 
 
Sec. 3.6: Developer has 4 years to obtain phase 1 final plat approval (after 2 
extensions are approved). Developer must then bring each phase thereafter to final 
plat within 4 years (which includes two extensions).  If Developer fails to meet these 
timelines, City has the right to terminate the DA, and the preliminary plat will be null 
and void.   
 
Section 3.7: Developer shall provide the following amenities:  large playground with 
benches/seating area, at least two ramadas with picnic tables, micro-pathway, pocket 
park with seating areas.  [Proposed Development Agreement attached as Exhibit “C”] 
 

O. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map: Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the project parcel is designated 
“Residential” on the Land Use Map, which matches the residential use planned for the site.  
 

                                              
 



             
        

8 
 

Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 
2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows: 
 

a. Goal 1 & Annexation: New development/annexation will be required to pay for 
improvements necessitated by its impacts on City Services.  Developer will pay for its 
proportionate impacts on parks, police, fire, and traffic via impact fees.  Developer will 
also extend City utility services at no cost to the City and construct a regional lift station 
if requested by the City.  Developer may participate in the “private” construction of a 
traffic signal at Emmett & SH44, at no cost to City or taxpayers.  At the very least, 
Developer will not build a single house until a sufficient control at the intersection of 
Emmett & SH44 is completed. 

b. Comprehensive Plan Element “Annexation” (Page 18 of 68):  The City of Middleton is 
getting boxed in by County and Star subdivisions.  Annexation of Pheasant Heights is 
an efficient and economical expansion that prevents the external limitations on City 
growth.  This further prevents subdivisions from using City services while not paying 
their fair share for City services.  

c. Goal 2 Private Property Rights:  allowing reasonable annexation and development will 
ensure that the City is not engaging in a “taking” of property, which is a violation of the 
Fifth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. (Comp Plan/Private Property Rights, page 
21 of 68)  

d. Goals 3 and 5: Provide variety of safe transportation services and facilities for vehicles 
and pedestrians.  Developer’s impact fees and pro-rata traffic fees will be used for the 
improvement and safety of surrounding roadways.  Additionally, Developer is assisting 
in the private installation of a traffic control at Hwy 44 & Emmett or, at the very least, 
refraining from building homes until a traffic control is installed at that location.  
Developer is also completing a sidewalk project off-site to ensure safe pedestrian 
passage at a location north of the project site. 

e. Goal 6: expansion of public facilities: Developer’s project extends sewer and water 
utilities in an economical manner and improves existing roadways nearby. 

f. Goals 7 and 8: the addition of homes in Middleton increases the likelihood of bringing 
more commercial and industrial opportunities to Middleton, thereby lowering taxes for 
residents and creating employment opportunities.  

g. Goals 10, 22 and 23: the addition of parks and micro-paths and the completion of City 
sidewalks increases recreational activity and promotes walkability, social interaction, 
and health in the Community. 

h. Goal 11: the R-3 zoning matches the resident lifestyle in the area.  Of note, Strategy 2 
encourages “…higher density housing near schools…etc.” 

i. Goal 14: plan for population growth by providing sufficient services.  Developer is 
improving roadways and paying toward future improvements to City streets. Developer 
is also responsible for building a regional sewer lift station that will serve the City 
beyond this subdivision, should the City request it to do so. 

 
P. Comments from City Engineer and City Staff:  City Engineer and Planner comments are 

attached as Exhibit “D”. 
 

Q. Comments from Agencies: Planning Staff has received comments from Middleton School 
District #134, Black Canyon Irrigation District, CHD4, COMPASS, Greater Middleton Parks & 
Recreation District, and Middleton Rural Fire Department. Copies of all comments received 
are attached as Exhibit “E”. 
 



             
        

9 
 

R. Comments Received from Public: Comments from the public and surrounding residents are 
attached as Exhibit “F”.  
 

S. Applicant Information:  Application was received and accepted on March 19, 2021. The 
Applicant/Owner is Infinite Real Estate/Amy Johnson, 719 Blue Ridge Circle, Alpine, UT 
84004. 
 

T. Notices:        Dates: 
 
Neighborhood Meeting      2/18/2021 & 1/31/2022      
Newspaper Notification      10/4/2022  

 Radius notification mailed to Landowners within 500’  10/3/2022  
 Circulation to Agencies      10/3/2022  
 Sign Posting property       10/3/2022  

 
U. Applicable Codes and Standards: Idaho Statute, Title 67, Chapter 65 and Title 50, Chapters 

2 & 13, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement thereto, 
Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4. 
 

V. Planning & Zoning Recommendation:  The Planning & Zoning Commission considered 
these applications at an April 11, 2022, public hearing.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 
recommended denial of all three development applications.  There was discussion regarding 
the fact that Pheasant Heights abutted County Subdivisions that included 1 acre lots or higher. 
The Commission did not like placing a higher density City subdivision next to the large lot 
county subdivisions. 
 
The Commission stated that rezoning to City R-1 (1 home per gross acre) would result in the 
Commission recommending approval of the project.  (See copy of the Commission’s FCR 
attached as Exhibit “G”). 
 

W. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
Applications for annexation/rezone, development agreement, and preliminary plat are before 
City Council for consideration. When deciding whether to approve or deny a development 
application, City Councilmembers must base their decisions on Findings of Facts and 
Conclusions of Law.  

 
As to General Facts, Planning Staff has set forth the findings of facts above in parentheses. If 
City Council agrees with those Findings of Facts and agrees with the evidence presented at 
the public hearing, then the City Council can accept those facts as part of its motion for 
approval or denial.   
 
As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear 
these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions. 
Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff 
further set forth the portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton Code to be considered in 
making a recommendation on the applications. If the public hearing is held and conducted in 
compliance with Idaho State Statute and the Middleton City Code, then the City Council may 
accept these Conclusions of Law as part of any motion to approve or deny the applications.  
 



             
        

10 
 

If City Council is inclined to recommend approval of the three applications based upon the 
above General Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any 
approval be subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to 
be extended to serve the subdivision. 

2. Developer to comply with all terms and provisions in the Development Agreement that 
was reviewed and approved by City Council at the public hearing. 

3. License/Access Easement pertaining to existing home (Lot15/Block3) must be 
terminated or abandoned prior to Phase 2 final plat approval. 

4. All pro-rata traffic fees due pursuant to MCC 5-4-3 must be paid prior to phase 1 final 
plat approval. 

5. Off-site installation of sidewalk between Willis Road roundabout and northern boundary 
of project to be completed prior to Phase 3 final plat approval.  

6. All City Engineer review comments, including comments dated October 13, 2022, are 
to be completed and approved.  

7. All City planner comments to be completed and approved. 
8. All Middleton Rural Fire District comments to be completed and approved.  
9. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time the City approves the construction 

drawings for the project.  
 

Finally, if the Council denies the application, then pursuant to the Local Land Use Planning Act 
(Idaho Statute, Title 67, Chpt. 65) and Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Council should 
state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the applications. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Prepared by: Roberta Stewart – P&Z Official     Dated: 10/14/2022 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

City Engineer Recommendation Letter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

rstewart
Text Box
                         To be Submitted



EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Proposed Preliminary Plat 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















EXHIBIT “C” 
 

Proposed Development Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 1 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

 
After Recording, mail to 
Middleton City Administrator 
1103 W. Main St. 
Middleton, ID 83644 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Development Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by and between 
the CITY OF MIDDLETON, a municipal corporation in the State of Idaho (City); and 
J&A Johnson LLC, a Utah limited liability company (Developer). 
 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer owns approximately 54.07 acres of real property 
located at 0 Emmett Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R34445012B0, R34445012A2, 
R3445012A0, and R3445012A1), Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho, legally described 
in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (Property); 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, Developer intends to improve the Property, also known as 
Pheasant Heights Subdivision (“Project”), according to the Middleton City Code and 
the City’s public works standards at the time(s) the Property is improved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Idaho Code §67-6511A, has the authority to 
annex and rezone the property and to enter into a development agreement for the 
purpose of allowing, by agreement, a specific development agreement to proceed in 
a specific area and for a specific purpose or use which is appropriate in the area, but 
for which all allowed uses for the requested zoning may not be appropriate pursuant 
to the Idaho Code and Middleton City Code. 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the recitals 
above, which are incorporated below, and the mutual covenants, representations, and 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 2 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

performances herein bargained for, relied on, and expected, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
 This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of 
Idaho Code §67-6511A and Middleton City Code, Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 

ARTICLE II 
ANNEXATION AND ZONING ORDINANCE  

 
 The City will adopt an ordinance to annex and rezone the Property from 
Canyon County C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) and R-1 (Single Family Residential) 
to City of Middleton R-3 (Single Family Residential). The Ordinance will become 
effective after it is approved, signed, published and recorded according to law, all of 
which actions the City will perform at the city’s expense and with the Developer’s 
cooperation. 
 

ARTICLE III 
CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

 
 3.1 Frontage Improvements. Developer shall, at its own cost, improve the 
fifty foot (50’) half-road right of way of Emmett Road per City standards and codes 
and dedicate the same to City.  Developer shall also construct the portions of 9th Street 
to be located on the Property, and the width of the 9th Street right of way shall match 
the width already constructed through the Faison Subdivision. 
 

3.2 9th Street Improvements:  Developer shall improve the existing portions 
of 9th Street located within the Faison Subdivision to bring the Canyon County 
roadway standards and specifications more in conformance with City standards and 
specifications for a major collector as they exist as of the date of this Agreement.  
Specifically, Developer shall add centerline striping for the entire length of the Faison 
Subdivision roadway and further in accordance with the road standards depicted on 
Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.     

 
3.3  Concept Plan:  The Concept Plan attached hereto as Exhibit C is 

incorporated herein by this reference. Developer shall be bound to abide by said 
Concept Plan and shall develop the Property substantially consistent with the 
Concept Plan.    

 
3.4 Proportionate Share Fees: Developer shall pay City required applicable 

traffic pro-rata share fees for all traffic impacts and intersection controls  per MCC 5-
4-3. Payment of the pro-rata share fee shall be made prior to final plat approval of 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 3 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

phase 1.  However, if Developer participates in the design and construction of an 
interim traffic signal at the intersection of Emmett Road & Highway 44 pursuant to 
Section 3.4.1 below, then Developer will not be required to pay those portions of the 
Pro-rata share fee attributable to said intersection. 

 
3.4.1 Emmett Road and State Highway 44 Intersection.  The 

intersection of Emmett Road and State Highway 44 (the “Intersection”) is 
currently operating at a Level of Service (“LOS”) F.    City will not issue the 
first certificate of occupancy building permit for a residence within the 
Project until the Intersection Improvement (defined below) has been 
installed (whether by Developer, a government agency, or a third-party, 
or a combination thereof) and accepted by ITD and CHD4.   

 
Development is anticipated in the areas north of said intersection, 

including in the area of Purple Sage Road.  Developer has committed with a 
group of other developers in the area to pay the costs of a study of the 
Intersection to identify: (i) a proposed interim traffic solution to be in place 
until such time as Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) and Canyon 
Highway District No. 4 (CHD4) identify the ultimate intersection configuration 
and generate plans for and construct the same; and (ii) proportionate share 
contributions of the participating developers.  Said interim traffic solution will 
be subject to review and approval by City, ITD, and CHD4 and is anticipated to 
include a traffic signal covering the existing three approaches, which traffic 
signal facilities are anticipated to be located within existing public right-of-way 
(the “Intersection Improvement”).  Any proportionate share contribution plan 
shall be handled by the Developers, and City will not be involved in approving, 
administering, or participating in said contribution plan. The costs of 
designing the Intersection Improvement are referred to herein as the “Design 
Costs”.  The costs of constructing the Intersection Improvement and 
acquisition of right-of-way required for the Intersection Improvement (if any) 
are referred to herein as the “Construction Costs.”   

 
In the event Developer incurs Construction Costs in connection with 

the Intersection Improvement, such Construction Costs shall be credited 
against the Pro-rata share fee for the Emmett Rd. and State Highway 44 
intersection, as identified in Section 3.4, above.   
 
3.5 Domestic Water and Sewer Facilities:  
 

3.5.1. Developer is responsible for all planning, engineering, and costs 
associated with extending City utilities, including sewer and water facilities, 
“to and through” the Property and tying the same into the existing City sewer 
and water systems. A lift station is required to serve the sewer needs of the 
Project. Developer shall construct a sewer lift station inside the project to 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 4 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

serve the Property, and Developer agrees to oversize the lift station if 
requested by the City to serve other developments.  To the extent Developer 
provides capacity over and above what is required to serve the Project based 
on peak hour flows, such additional capacity (including over-size work and 
additional lines) shall be subject to reimbursement via a mutually agreeable 
latecomer fee agreement to be negotiated between Developer and City as set 
forth in MCC 1-17-1 or other mutually agreeable reimbursement agreement.  
Said agreement shall contain a provision wherein City will reserve sufficient 
capacity for Developer to fully complete Project construction in the future. 

 
3.5.2. Alternatively, if the City, in its sole discretion, determines that a 

regional lift station is preferable to a lift station on the Project site, Developer 
shall participate in the construction of a regional lift station, which 
participation may include contributing monies to the extent of Developer’s 
proportionate share of the regional lift station, paying late comer fees, or 
constructing the regional lift station.  If Developer constructs the regional lift 
station, to the extent Developer provides capacity over and above what is 
required to serve the Project based on peak hour flows, such additional 
capacity (including over-size work and additional lines) shall be subject to 
reimbursement via a mutually agreeable a latecomer fee agreement to be 
negotiated between Developer and City as set forth in MCC 1-17-1 or other 
mutually agreeable reimbursement agreement.  Said agreement shall permit 
Developer to be reimbursed by means of credits against otherwise applicable 
sewer connection fees, and shall contain a provision wherein City will reserve 
sufficient capacity for Developer to fully complete Project construction in the 
future. 

 
3.5.3. Except as otherwise set forth above, sewer and water capacity 

will undergo a will-serve analysis, and City will not reserve sewer and water 
capacity any earlier than construction drawing approval. 
 

 3.7 Final Plat Requirements  Notwithstanding the provisions in Article IV, 
Developer shall obtain City Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat within two 
(2) years of the preliminary plat approval. Said signature shall be processed 
expeditiously by City and in no event later than six (6) months from the time the 
Developer submits a “Completion Packet” with all items required by the Supplement 
to the ISPWC and final plat application.  The six (6) month period will not be triggered 
if any information required by the Supplement is missing.    
 

3.7.1  Developer may obtain a one (1) year extension to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on Phase 1 final plat by submitting an administrative 
written request for extension to the Middleton Planning & Zoning Official 
before the expiration of the initial two-year period, which approval shall not 
be withheld if Developer submits its request in a timely manner.  Thereafter, 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 5 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

City Council may approve an additional time extension of one (1) year if 
developer submits a written request for extension prior to the expiration of 
the previous extension period.  Neither approval shall require a public hearing 
before City Council.  
 
3.7.2 If Developer does not obtain City Engineer’s signature on the final plat 
for Phase 1 within the time frame noted above, City may, at its sole discretion, 
terminate the entire Development Agreement after complying with the 
Middleton City Code provisions for legal notice and public hearing. The zoning 
for the property shall remain R-3. Additionally, the preliminary plat will 
automatically become null and void. City may seek termination of the 
Development Agreement at any time after the noted time periods expire, and 
City’s delay in terminating the Development Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of its right to terminate the Development Agreement. 

 
3.7.3  After final plat approval for the first phase, Developer shall obtain City 
Engineer’s signature on the final plat for each phase in two (2) year intervals 
(subject to the requirement by the City to process such applications 
expeditiously and in no event later than six months from the time Developer 
submits a fully completed “Completion Packet” application and final plat 
application).  Developer may obtain two (2) additional one-year extensions 
using the procedure as outlined above in paragraph  3.7.1. If Developer fails to 
comply with said timelines, the portions of the preliminary plat yet to be final 
platted will become null and void.  The zoning for the unplatted area shall 
remain R-3 (single family residential) zoning. 

 
 3.8 Amenities:   Developer shall provide the following amenities for the 
Project:  Large playground with benches/seating area and at least two picnic 
ramadas. The pocket park shall contain benches/seating area.  

 
ARTICLE IV  

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH AGREEMENT 
 
 4.1 If the Developer fails to comply with any of the terms or conditions in 
this Agreement, then the portion(s) of this Agreement pertaining to the breach may 
be modified or terminated by the Middleton City Council, after complying with the 
notice and hearing requirement contained in Middleton City Code and Idaho Code.   
   

4.1.1 If after a breach, the City Council determines that the terms of this 
Agreement applicable to the breach should be modified, the term(s) of this 
Agreement shall be amended and the Developer shall comply with the 
amended terms. 
   



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 6 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

4.1.2 Any breach waived by the City shall apply solely to the breach waived 
and shall not bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any 
subsequent breach of any such or other covenants and conditions. 

 
 4.2 If after a breach, the zoning shall remain R-3 and Developer hereby 
consents to such zoning. 
  
 4.3 Upon a breach of this Agreement, any of the parties in any court of 
competent jurisdiction, by action or proceeding at law or in equity, may secure the 
specific performance of the covenants and agreements herein contained, may be 
awarded damages for failure of performance of both, or may obtain rescission, 
disconnection, and damages for repudiation or material failure of performance. 
 
 4.4 NOTICE OF FAILED PERFORMANCE.  Upon any failure of any party to 
this Agreement to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the party claiming 
such failure shall notify, in writing, the party alleged to have failed to perform of the 
alleged failure and shall demand performance.  No breach of this Agreement may be 
found to have occurred if performance has commenced to the satisfaction of the 
complaining party with thirty (30) days of the receipt of such notice. 

 
 

ARTICLE V 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 5.1 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties respecting 
the Property and supersedes all prior discussions and written and verbal agreements 
between the parties respecting the Property. 
 
 5.2 Any amendment or addendum to this Agreement shall be in writing and 
made only after the City has complied with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho 
Code §67-6509 and Middleton City Code Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 
 5.3 Any notice that a party may desire to give to another party must be in 
writing and may be given by personal delivery, by mailing the same registered or 
certified mail with a return receipt requested, or by Federal Express or other 
reputable overnight delivery service.  Notice shall be given to the parties at the 
following addresses or such other address and to such other persons as the parties 
may designate after giving notice.  Any such notice shall be deemed given upon 
delivery if by personal delivery, upon deposit in the United States mail if sent by mail 
pursuant to the forgoing: 
    
   Middleton: City Clerk 
     City of Middleton 
     P.O. Box 487 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 7 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

     Middleton, Idaho 83644 
    
   Developer: J&A Johnson LLC 
     Amy Johnson 
     24 East Main Street 
     American Fork, UT 84003 
 
   With a copy to: Clark Wardle LLP 
      Attn: Hethe Clark 
      PO Box 639 
      Boise, Idaho 83701 
       
 5.4 If either party shall fail to perform under this Agreement and said 
failure is cured with the assistance of an attorney for the other party, as a part of 
curing said failure, the reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party shall be 
reimbursed to the other party upon demand.  In the event a suit or action is filed by 
either party against the other to interpret or enforce this Agreement, the unsuccessful 
party to such litigation agrees to pay to the prevailing party all costs and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred therein, including the same with 
respect to an appeal. 
 
 5.5 The Agreement shall be effective after being fully executed.  This 
Agreement shall become valid and binding only upon its approval by the City Council 
and execution of the Mayor and City Clerk.  After its execution, the Agreement shall 
be recorded in the office of the County Recorded at the expense of the City. 
 
 5.6 Each commitment and restriction described in this Agreement shall be 
a burden on the Property and run with the land and shall be appurtenant to and for 
the benefit of the Property, adjacent property and other residential land near the 
Property. 
 

5.6.1  This Agreement shall be binding on the City and Developer, and their 
respective heirs, administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns.  Provided, however, that if all or any portion of the 
Property is divided, then each owner of a legal lot shall only be responsible for 
duties and obligations or breaches as to their owners’ parcels or lots. 
 
5.6.2  The new owner of the Property or any portion thereof (including, 
without limitation, any owner who acquires its interest by foreclosure, 
trustee’s sale or otherwise) shall be liable for all commitments and other 
obligations arising under this Agreement with respect only to such owner’s lot 
or parcel. 

 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 8 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

 5.7 The Property that is the subject of this Agreement is located in Canyon 
County, Idaho and the terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to the 
laws of the State of Idaho in effect at this time this Agreement is executed.  Any action 
brought in connection with this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent 
jurisdiction located in Canyon County, Idaho. 
 
 5.8 If any term, provision, commitment or restriction of this Agreement or 
the application thereof to any party or circumstance shall to any extent be held invalid 
or unenforceable, the remainder of this instrument shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 5.9 Time is of the essence for performance of each obligation in this 
Agreement. 
  

[end of text – signatures on following page]  



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 9 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused this Agreement to be 
executed, on the day and year first above written. 
 
 Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2022 and effective upon annexation and 
rezoning of the Property. 
 
 
CITY OF MIDDLETON           ATTEST 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________          By: _______________________________________ 
       Steven J. Rule, Mayor       Becky Crofts, City Clerk 

 
 
 
J&A JOHNSON LLC, 
a Utah limited liability company 
 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________________ 
 
       Its _______________________________________ 
 
 
 
Schedule of Exhibits: 
Exhibit A – Legal Description 
Exhibit B – 9th Street Road Construction Requirements 
Exhibit C – Concept Plan 
 
 
 

[notary acknowledgments on following page] 
 

 
  



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision  
Developer redline version 10-10-2022 
Page 10 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

State of IDAHO ) 
             ss. 
County of Canyon ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this _________ day of ___________________, 
2022, personally appeared before me Steven J. Rule, who declared that he is the 
Mayor of the City of Middleton, Idaho and signed this Development Agreement as 
Mayor of the City of Middleton.   
 
 
      ________________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires: ___________________ 
 
 
     
 
State of Idaho  ) 
   ss. 
County of   ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ___ day of ___________________, 2022, 
personally appeared before me _______________________________________________________ who 
declared that he/she signed this Development Agreement in the capacity of 
__________________________________ for J&A Johnson LLC. 
 
            
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision 
Exhibit A 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Property 
 
 
 

[INSERT] 
 
 









Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision 
Exhibit B 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

9th Street Road Construction Requirements 
 
 

[INSERT] 
 



Development Agreement – Pheasant Heights Subdivision 
Exhibit C 

 
4874-7756-4184, v. 2.1 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Approved Concept Plan 
 
 

[INSERT] 





EXHIBIT “D” 
 

City Planner & Engineering Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 

citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

PLANNER COMMENTS – PHEASANT HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION 

2nd Submittal (Kimley-Horn Engineer) 

 

 

February 8, 2022 

 

1. Provide new Vicinity Map/update on Plat 

2. Provide/update the narrative for the project. 

3. Provide new/updated record of survey for additional parcels. 

4. Update Title Report/Schedule B 

5. Provide Warranty Deeds for additional parcel 

6. Provide AOL to match Warranty Deed  

7. Update Drainage Calculations 

8. Update TIS 

9. Provide 2 new sets of mailing labels for Landowners within 500 ft of the project. You can get 

the list from Canyon County.  

10. Show perimeter fence around development in landscape plan. The added parcels are not 

part of the landscape plan. 

11. Show and call out all irrigation/ditch easements in development. Irrigation cannot locate in 

rights of way and need to cross rights of way at 90d. 

12. Work with City Engineer - Roads need to show a centerline turning radius of minimum of 90 

ft. Call out in notes. 

13. Add language to note 1: Building setback and dimension standards shall be in compliance 

with the applicable zoning regulations of Middleton at time of building permit issuance. 

14. Add to note 4: All lot lines common to public streets are hereby designated to have a 10-foot 

permanent easement for public and private utilities …. 

15. Add note to call out common areas by lot and block, identify the use and state who owns and 

maintains them. 

16. Add note: All lots are residential building lots except lots (insert L/B) 

17. Add cluster mailbox(s) in common area(s). Call out in notes. 

18. Frontage of Block 1, Lots 9, 10, 11, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 36, 38. Block 4, Lots 34, 35, 36 and 

Block 6, Lot 2 need to show at least 75 ft. at the 25 ft setback line. 

19. Add note explaining how stormwater run-off will be handled.  The City accepts retention 

swales only – designed to manage the 100yr/1 hour storm event.   

20. Add note: All existing wells shall be abandoned per IDWR regulations. All septic systems shall 

be completely removed and the area recompacted per geotechnical report. 

21. Add note: Domestic and fire protection water shall be provided by the City of Middleton, 

22. Add note: Sanitary Sewer service shall be provided by the City of Middleton. 

23. Access onto Emmett Road will need to be approved by CHD4. 

24. Add note: This development has a Development Agreement with Instrument #___________. 

25. Address any additional comments from City Engineer, MRFD, CHD4, ITD, Irrigation District. 



2 | P a g e  

 

26. Add note: All building setbacks and dimensional standards shall be in compliance with R-3 

zoning at time of building permit issuance. 

27. Block 9/Lot 2 is a land locked parcel. The city does not allow for landlocked parcels.  

28. Add note: Fiber optic to be provided to each lot during Joint Trench construction per the City 

of Middleton Supplement to the ISPWC. 

29. Show all public and private easements on preliminary plat. 

30. Add note: Sewer and water capacity shall be reserved when City approves construction 

drawings.  

31. Remove Note 14 – “Right to Farm….” 

32. Work with City Engineer on location of possible regional lift station to be reimbursed through 

late-comer fees. 

 

Jennica Reynolds 
 

Middleton City Deputy Clerk, Planning 

 

 



 

 
 

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 

citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

PLANNER COMMENTS – PHEASANT HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION 

3rd Submittal (Kimley-Horn Engineer) 

 

 

March 23, 2022 

 

1. Need Warranty deeds for Mortensen and VanderJagt parcels. 

2. Provide AOL to match Warranty Deed -VanderJagt 

3. Add to note 4: All lot lines common to public streets are hereby designated to have a 10-foot 

permanent easement for public and private utilities …. 

4. Lot 29/Block 4 is a retention pond. Add to note 6 and 7 to call out in common areas by lot 

and block.  

5. I only count out 8 common areas, please call out the 3 others.  

6. Work with City Engineer on location of possible regional lift station to be reimbursed through 

late-comer fees. 

 

Jennica Reynolds 
Middleton City  

Deputy Clerk, Planning 

 

 



 

 
 
 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

PLANNER COMMENTS – PHEASANT HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION 
Review of Preliminary Plat dated 4/8/2022 

 
April 28, 2022 
 

1. Revise the pre-plat to show a small strip of off-site work to construct the sidewalk and 
connected right of way improvements for the 55’ long strip between the roundabout sidewalk 
and the Pheasant Heights sidewalk.   All work will be inside the right of way.  I will add this 
requirement to the proposed DA. Looks like the curb is already in place.  The sidewalk just 
needs to be completed on that 55’ long dirt strip. 

 
2. The Emmett road section needs to show a 4’ wide bike lane.  This would be very helpful to 

the students. Additionally, it was recommended by CHD4 in their first set of comments.   
3. Please make sure the pressurized irrigation has been removed from the Right of Way to Amy 

Woodruff’s satisfaction.   
4. Add note to preliminary plat that the access on to Emmett Road will be a right in/right out 

only. 
5. Please provide auto turn analysis to Middleton Fire per their request. 
6. Remove pre-plat note #18. It is duplicative of Note 1. 
7. Add the following note: “Any re-subdivision of this plat will comply with the applicable zoning 

regulations in effect at the time of the re-subdivision.” 
8. Remove note 12 regarding footings and groundwater elevation.  Any such note should mirror 

the City’s floodplain code language. Since you are not in the floodplain, it will not be 
necessary to insert a note such as note 12 at this time.  

Roberta Stewart 
Middleton City  
Planning & Zoning Director 



 

 
 

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 

citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

PLANNER COMMENTS – PHEASANT HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION 

 

 

 

SEPT 23, 2021 

 

1. Provide new mailing labels for Landowners within 300ft of the project. You can get those 

from Canyon County. The Landowner in the center of the project at 23854 Emmett Road is 

not on your labels and was not sent the notice for the neighborhood meeting. He did find out 

about the meeting and attended so you will not have to redo the neighborhood meeting. 

However, we need 2 sets of correct labels.  

2. If you are going to use a color legend, you must provide a colored print. The legends are not 

matching the plans.  

3. Utility map is lacking required detail (Work with City Engineer). For example on the utility map 

the only way you have called out water, sewer and stormwater is through color. There are no 

(---  -----  W ---- ----, or --- --- SS --- ---- ) lines on the map, only in the legend. 

4. Fire Hydrants and street lights need to be more visible on black and white plans or need to 

submit color hard copy plans. 

5. Provide a landscape plan. 

6. Show perimeter fence around development in landscape plan.  Add note to preliminary plat:  

subdivision exterior required to be fenced in conformance with approved fencing plan. 

7. MCC 5-4-4(3d) “Irrigation System: A statement describing the proposed irrigation system, 

point of delivery, and preliminary layout shall appear on the preliminary plat.”  

8. Show and call out all irrigation/ditch easements in development. Irrigation cannot locate in 

rights of way and need to cross rights of way at 90d. 

9. Add note: Any re-subdivision of this plat shall comply with the appliable regulations in effect 

at the time of the Re-subdivision. 

10. Show right of way and utility easements. Call out in notes.  No irrigation may locate in utility 

easement area(s). 

11. Need phasing plan with lot breakdown per phase. MCC 5-4-4 (2c) If the subdivision is to be 

developed in phases, phase lines, numbers and development data per phase shall be shown 

on the plat.  

12. Lot and block numbers need to be in consecutive order beginning with the number 1. For 

example: L1/B1, L4/B3. 

13. Work with City Engineer - Roads need to show a turning radius of minimum of 90 ft. Call out 

in notes. 

14. MCC 5-4-10-10 “developers shall include 5% irrigated and landscaped open space in a 

concentrated location(s), agreed to with the City, that is aesthetically pleasing and sufficiently 

large to accommodate group and/or recreational activities.” Call out amenity in notes.  

15. Add note to call out common areas by lot and block, identify the use and state who owns 

them. 

16. Add note: All lots are residential building lots except lots (insert L/B) 



2 | P a g e  

 

17. Add cluster mailbox(s) in common area(s). Call out in notes. 

18. MCC 5-4-10 (2J) “All new roads shall be named as follows: roads having a predominantly 

north-south direction shall be avenues; roads having a predominantly east-west direction 

shall be streets., and cul-de-sacs shall be courts.” Change Street names accordingly 

removing Place, Way, Drive and Road. (I am verifying your proposed road names with Canyon 

County, there may be some changes) 

19. Block length cannot be more than 1,100 ft. Fireback Place is too long of a block and needs 

to be broken up, perhaps with common lots. 

20. Frontage of lots 134, 135, 138, 225, 227, 234 need to show at least 75 ft. at the 25 ft 

setback line. 

21. Per MCC 5-4-10-6 Traffic Buffer along Emmett Road for the length of the frontage.  This 

buffer is not part of the Right-of-Way for Emmett Road.     

22. Add note: All streets proposed in this development are public streets and shall be 

constructed in accordance with City of Middleton standards.  Add typical section for local 

roads and Emmett Road (5 lane urban). 

23. Add note explaining how stormwater run-off will be handled.  The City accepts retention 

swales only – designed to manage the 100yr/1 hour storm event.   

24. Add note: All existing wells shall be abandoned per IDWR regulations. All septic systems shall 

be completely removed and the area recompacted per geotechnical report. 

25. Add note: Domestic and fire protection water shall be provided by the City of Middleton, 

26. Add note: Sanitary Sewer service shall be provided by the City of Middleton. 

27. After 30 homes per Fire code, 50 per MCC there needs to be a 2nd access. Currently only one 

access onto Emmett Road is showing, work with city engineer to address this. 

28. Access onto Emmett Road will need to be approved by CHD4. 

29. Add note: This development has a Development Agreement with Instrument #___________. 

30. Address any additional comments from City Engineer, MRFD, CHD4, ITD, Irrigation District. 

31. Rear setbacks are 20 ft. (Remove Key with setbacks) 

32. Add note: All building setbacks and dimensional standards shall be in compliance with R-3 

zoning at time of building permit issuance. 

33. Add note: Fiber optic to be provided to each lot during Joint Trench construction per the City 

of Middleton Supplement to the ISPWC. 

34. Show all public and private easements on preliminary plat. 

35. Add note: Lot lines common to street right-of-way contain a 10-foot wide permanent 

easement for public and private utilities. 

36. Add note: All lots are hereby designated as having a permanent easement for public utilities 

and pedestrian walkway over the five (5) feet adjacent to any interior side lot line, and over 

the ten (10) feet adjacent to any rear lot line of subdivision boundary.  

37. Add note: Sewer and water capacity shall be reserved when City approves construction 

drawings.  

 

Jennica Reynolds 
 

Middleton City Deputy Clerk, Planning 

 

 



 

 
 
 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

UPDATED PLANNER COMMENTS – PHEASANT HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION 
Review of Preliminary Plat received 6/1/2022 

 
October 3, 2022 
 

1. Add note: “Developer to construct approximately 55 l.f. of sidewalk to the north of the project 
to complete the unfinished portion of sidewalk on the east side of Emmett Road between the 
Willis roundabout and the Pheasant Heights project.” 

 
 

2. On Page 2, add a street section to show the 3’ berm and fence required by MCC 5-4-10-6 to 
complete the 24’ wide traffic buffer.  Needs to be graphic something like the below.  

 

3. The 24’ wide traffic berm mandated by 5-4-10-6 appears incomplete as it nears the Willis 
roundabout.  This is an issue for City Engineer to confirm is in compliance or not.  
 

4. Add “location notes” on pre-plat showing mailbox cluster locations. Currently showing on 
landscape plan, but needs to show on preliminary plat. 
 

5. Need title report/Schedule B for the Mortensen parcel on southern boundary and Jagernault 
parcel (proposed Lot 15/Block 4). 

Roberta Stewart 
Middleton City  
Planning & Zoning Director 













 

 
 
 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

PLANNER COMMENTS – PHEASANT HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION 
2nd Submittal (Kimley-Horn Engineer) 

 
 
January 25, 2022 
 

1. Provide new Vicinity Map/update on Plat 
2. Provide/update the narrative for the project. 
3. Provide new/updated record of survey for additional parcels. 
4. Update Title Report/Schedule B 
5. Provide Warranty Deeds for additional parcel 
6. Provide AOL to match Warranty Deed  
7. Update Drainage Calculations 
8. Update TIS 
9. Provide 2 new sets of mailing labels for Landowners within 500 ft of the project. You can get 

the list from Canyon County.  
10. Show perimeter fence around development in landscape plan. The added parcels are not 

part of the landscape plan. 
11. Show and call out all irrigation/ditch easements in development. Irrigation cannot locate in 

rights of way and need to cross rights of way at 90d. 
12. Work with City Engineer - Roads need to show a centerline turning radius of minimum of 90 

ft. Call out in notes. 
13. Add language to note 1: Building setback and dimension standards shall be in compliance 

with the applicable zoning regulations of Middleton at time of building permit issuance. 
14. Add to note 4: All lot lines common to public streets are hereby designated to have a 10-foot 

permanent easement for public and private utilities …. 
15. Add note to call out common areas by lot and block, identify the use and state who owns and 

maintains them. 
16. Add note: All lots are residential building lots except lots (insert L/B) 
17. Add cluster mailbox(s) in common area(s). Call out in notes. 
18. Frontage of Block 1, Lots 9, 10, 11, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 36, 38. Block 4, Lots 34, 35, 36 and 

Block 6, Lot 2 need to show at least 75 ft. at the 25 ft setback line. 
19. Add note explaining how stormwater run-off will be handled.  The City accepts retention 

swales only – designed to manage the 100yr/1 hour storm event.   
20. Add note: All existing wells shall be abandoned per IDWR regulations. All septic systems shall 

be completely removed and the area recompacted per geotechnical report. 
21. Add note: Domestic and fire protection water shall be provided by the City of Middleton, 
22. Add note: Sanitary Sewer service shall be provided by the City of Middleton. 
23. Access onto Emmett Road will need to be approved by CHD4. 
24. Add note: This development has a Development Agreement with Instrument #___________. 
25. Address any additional comments from City Engineer, MRFD, CHD4, ITD, Irrigation District. 



2 | P a g e  
 

26. Add note: All building setbacks and dimensional standards shall be in compliance with R-3 
zoning at time of building permit issuance. 

27. Block 9/Lot 2 is a land locked parcel. The city does not allow for landlocked parcels.  
28. Add note: Fiber optic to be provided to each lot during Joint Trench construction per the City 

of Middleton Supplement to the ISPWC. 
29. Show all public and private easements on preliminary plat. 
30. Add note: Sewer and water capacity shall be reserved when City approves construction 

drawings.  

 

Amy and Roberta: I also have notes about needing Legal Agreements from the County Subdivision for 
the sewer and 9th street access? I don’t’ remember/know if this is taken care of with approval of 
CHD4 for the Pheasant Heights to connect to 9th Street? I think it might be for ROW and the 
improvement of 9th Street to bring it up to City standards. How would I put this in the notes? 

 

Jennica Reynolds 
 
Middleton City Deputy Clerk, Planning 
 
 















EXHIBIT “E” 
 

Agency Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 

Middleton School District Office:    5 S. Viking Ave, Middleton, ID 83644          Phone:  208-585-3027 
Marc C. Gee, Superintendent             Lisa Pennington, Asst. Superintendent          Alicia Krantz, Business Manager 

       mgee@msd134.org                                   lpennington@msd134.org                             akrantz@msd134.org 
 

		
Middleton School District #134  

City of Middleton--Public Hearing Notice Response 
General Response for New Development 

Middleton School District is currently experiencing significant growth in its student population.  
Currently Middleton School District has 2 of our 3 elementary schools over capacity.  Heights Elementary is 
at 134% of capacity with three portable units.  Mill Creek Elementary is at 123% of capacity with 2 
portables (soon to be 4).    We are nearing capacity, but have not superseded at this point, at our high school 
(91%) and middle school (85%).  As it stands now there is a need for additional facilities in our school 
district, primarily at the elementary grades.  However, we have significant concerns of the continued 
growth and our ability to meet the future facility needs of our district at the secondary level (Middleton 
Middle School and Middleton High School). 

We have completed demographic study performed for our school district boundaries and data suggests 
that for every new home we could expect between 0.5 and 0.7 (with an average of .569) students to 
come to our schools.  That is the factor/rate we use to make our projection of student impact for each 
development. 

Pheasant Heights Subdivision 
Elementary students living in the subdivision as planned would be in the attendance zone for Purple 
Sage Elementary School.  With 147 lots we anticipate the following breakdown of student increase in 
our schools: 

Grade Range Factor # of students 
Elementary (K-5) 0.219 32.193 
Middle (6-8) 0.139 20.433 
High (9-12) 0.211 31.017 
Total 0.569 83.643 

 

Representatives of Pheasant Heights Subdivision have met with school district administration and 
discussed ways to mitigate the impact of these students on the physical facilities and operations of the 
school district.  Based on district analysis (see attached Analysis of Real Estate Development Impact on 
Middleton School District) and discussion with developer representatives we have identified two primary 
areas where the developers of the Pheasant Heights Subdivision could assist in the mitigation of growth 
in the school system.   

First, the developer has committed to a cooperative arrangement with the developers of other 
subdivisions accessing Emmett Road to develop the traffic signal at the intersection of Emmett Road and 
State Highway 44.  With the proximity of the intersection to our school zones, combined with increased 



Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 

Middleton School District Office:    5 S. Viking Ave, Middleton, ID 83644          Phone:  208-585-3027 
Marc C. Gee, Superintendent             Lisa Pennington, Asst. Superintendent          Alicia Krantz, Business Manager 

       mgee@msd134.org                                   lpennington@msd134.org                             akrantz@msd134.org 
 

traffic on Emmett Road and Highway 44, we feel the addition of the traffic signal will be a significant 
support for the school operations. 

Second, the developers and school district officials are in the process of developing a Memorandum of 
Understanding regarding a voluntary contribution from the developer to the district.  With the addition 
of elementary students into a system that is over capacity, our analysis indicates that $1114.60 per lot, 
or $5,089.52 per elementary student, is the cost share that would account for the elementary growth 
due to the development of any given development.  The developer has indicated this is something they 
would be willing to voluntarily support. 

In addition to the increase in student population, no bussing would be provided for Middleton High 
School students.  As such, it would be important that the developer include plans for sidewalks 
connecting to the existing sidewalk system so that students have a safe passage to school.  We would 
ask that the developer be responsible for any safety signage and alterations to Emmett Road that would 
be required for students crossing from the subdivision to Middleton High School.   Bussing would be 
provided for students attending Middleton Middle School and Purple Sage Elementary. 

 

________________________________           October 14, 2022                      . 

Marc C. Gee, Superintendent  Date 





























From: Carl Hayes
To: Jennica Reynolds
Subject: RE: Notice of Public Hearing - PZ Pheasant Heights
Date: Tuesday, November 2, 2021 2:51:51 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Jennica,
 
Standard piping requirements apply to this as well.  The developer has just begun the process of plan
review.  BCID cannot provide approval until final plan approval and the fees have been paid.
 
Thank you,
 
 
 

 
 
 

From: Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com> 
Sent: Friday, October 22, 2021 11:06 AM
To: Alicia Krantz - MSD <akrantz@msd134.org>; Canyon County Paramedics
<MStowell@ccparamedics.com>; Carl Miller <cmiller@compassidaho.org>; Idaho Power - Mike
Ybarguen <MYbarguen@idahopower.com>; ITD - Development

mailto:carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com



<D3Development.services@ITD.idaho.gov>; ITD - Sarah <Sarah.Arjona@itd.idaho.gov>; Julie Collette
<gmprdjulie@gmail.com>; Lacey Grooms - MSD <lgrooms@msd134.org>; Monica Taylor -
Intermountain Gass <monica.taylor@intgas.com>; vislas@starfirerescue.org;
westerninfo@idwr.idaho.gov; zoninginfo@canyoncounty.id.gov; Carl Hayes
<carl@blackcanyonirrigation.com>; Chris Hopper <chopper@canyonhd4.org>; lriccio@canyonhd4.org
Cc: Roberta Stewart <rstewart@middletoncity.com>
Subject: Notice of Public Hearing - PZ Pheasant Heights
 
Please see the attached notice of public hearing.
https://middleton.id.gov/PublicHearingNotices
 
Thank You,

Jennica Reynolds
Deputy Clerk, Planning
City of Middleton
208-585-3133
jreynolds@middletoncity.com
 

https://middleton.id.gov/PublicHearingNotices
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com


 
October 4, 2021 

 

City of Middleton, Idaho 

Planning & Zoning Department 

1103 West Main Street  

Middleton, ID 83644 

Attention:  Roberta Stewart, Planning and Zoning Administrator 

 

RE:  Pheasant Ridge Subdivision—Preliminary Plat 

 

Mrs. Stewart: 

 

Canyon Highway District No. 4 (CHD4) has reviewed the preliminary plat dated 3/19/2021 for 

Pheasant Ridge Subdivision.  The development consists of 45.7 acres with 137 buildable lots.  

The development is located on parcels R34445012A2 and R34445012B0.  The development is 

requesting annexation, preliminary plat, and R-3 zoning from Middleton City.  The Subdivision 

is located on the west side of Emmett Road and the north boundary is approximately 150’ south 

of the section line in common with Willis Road. 

 

CHD4 offers the following recommendations: 

 

General 

By agreement with the City, CHD4 maintains Emmett Road from Highway 44 to Purple Sage 

Road (including roundabout circulatory lanes at 9th Street and Willis Road).  Under this 

agreement, CHD4 may provide comment on development or other permit activity, which may 

affect traffic operations or maintenance of Middleton Road.   

 

CHD4 requests the City postpone hearing this request until the irrigation adjacent to 

Emmett Road is shown relocated in an easement outside of the 50’ Emmett ROW and 9th 

Street is shown extended to a more feasible location (consider extending to parcel 

R3444910300 as originally intended by CHD4 from Faison Pointe). 

 

Emmett Road 

Middleton City and Canyon County classify Emmett Road as a principal arterial.  Design speeds 

of urban principal arterial roads are 45 mph. 

 

CHD4 asks the City to consider the following: 

 Minimum ROW dedication of 50’ from centerline of Emmett Road 

 Cross section that matches existing improvements—generally as follows: 

o 32’ measured from face of splitter island to TBC 

o 2’ buffer from face of splitter island curb 

o Two 12’ wide travel lanes 

o 4’ wide bike lane 

o 8’ wide landscape buffer strip from TBC  

o 8’ wide pathway with at least 1’ landscape strip from back of pathway. 



Page 2 of 3 

Improvements to the right-of-way outside of the subdivision boundary shall be required—

improvements include: 

 Connecting pathway to the Willis roundabout  

 Widen as needed the two southbound travel lanes to 12’ wide plus bike lane 

 

This will be reviewed in further detail at time of improvement drawings. 

 

The preliminary plat does not depict the centerline of Emmett Road to crosscheck the right-of-

way dedication.  CHD4 advises the applicant to confirm this is correct. 

 

CHD4 can provide improvement drawings for the Emmett Road roundabouts and Faison Pointe 

extension of 9th Street to assist in design. 

 

RIRO Approach 

Applicant is proposing a RIRO approach approximately 1,320’ south of the section line in 

common with Willis Road.  CHD4 requests the applicant confirm a right-in-right-out approach is 

acceptable with Middleton City onto a principal arterial and apply for a variance with Middleton 

City if applicable.   

 

Extension of the splitter island and other improvements may be required for the RIRO approach.  

CHD4 will look into improvements related to the RIRO approach at time of improvement 

drawings. 

 

Emmett Road Irrigation 

Existing canal alignment interferes with future extension of curb along Emmett Road.  Applicant 

shall relocate all irrigation in an easement outside of the 50’ Emmett Road right-of-way.  This 

does not appear shown on the plans and will result in a significant lot reconfiguration.   

 

9th Street 

Middleton City classifies 9th Street as a major collector.  Urban major collector roads are 

typically designed for 35 mph.  Design 9th Street per Middleton City desired section.  Existing 9th 

Street through Faison Pointe is constructed as follows: 

 



Page 3 of 3 

Per Canyon County Functional Class Map, 9th Street is shown extending to Harvey Road (West 

of Canyon Lane).  Per the latest Middleton City functional Class Map, this appears to be the 

desire of Middleton City albeit terminate at Canyon Lane.   

 

Extending 9th Street per Pheasant Ridge Subdivision Preliminary Plat will lead the centerline 

through 3 existing residences.   

 

CHD4 intended 9th Street to be extended from Faison Pointe to parcel R3444910300 due to the 

likelihood of development (15.54 acres) vs extending it through three (3) one (1) acre lots and 

residences.  CHD4 also requests the City direct the applicant to design the extension to parcel 

R3444910300 at 35 mph design speeds.   

 

Traffic Impact Study (TIS) 

Traffic mitigation will be addressed through subdivision frontage improvements and impact fees. 

 

Please feel free to contact with any questions on this matter. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 
Lenny Riccio, E.I.T. 

Assistant District Engineer 

Transportation Planner 

Canyon Highway District No. 4 

 











Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 Development Review 
 

The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) is the metropolitan planning organization 
(MPO) for Ada and Canyon Counties. COMPASS has developed this review as a tool for local governments to 
evaluate whether land developments are consistent with the goals of Communities in Motion 2040 2.0 (CIM 2040), 
the regional long-range transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. This checklist is not intended to be 
prescriptive, but rather a guidance document based on CIM 2040 2.0 goals. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Recommendations 

The site plan shows vehicular access onto Emmett Road. Emmett road is identified in the Middleton Connects 2015 
City Vision Map as having a micro path in the future. Given the project’s proximity to Middleton High School, 
consider a safe pedestrian crossing of Emmet Road.  

The closest transit stop is about 2-miles away at the Middleton Fine Arts Park and Ride location. The ValleyConnect 
2.0 Growth Scenario proposes future service at this location with an express route from Happy Day Transit Center 
to St. Luke’s in Meridian, via Hwy-44, with 30-minute frequencies.  

 

 

More information about COMPASS and Communities in Motion 2040 2.0: 
Web: www.compassidaho.org 
Email info@compassidaho.org 
More information about the development review process:  
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm 

Development Name: Pheasant Heights    Agency: Middleton 

CIM Vision Category: Existing Neighborhoods 
 
New households: 137   New jobs: 0   Exceeds CIM forecast: No 
 

Farmland contributes to the local economy, creates 
additional jobs, and provides food security to the region. 
Development in farm areas decreases the productivity 
and sustainability of farmland.  
 

Farmland consumed: Yes 
Farmland within 1 mile: 1,094 acres 
 

Housing within 1 mile: 530 
Jobs within 1 mile: 180 
Jobs/Housing Ratio: 0.3 
 

Nearest bus stop: >4 miles 
Nearest public school: 0.1 miles 
Nearest public park: 2.1 miles 
Nearest grocery store: >4 miles 
 
 

CIM Corridor: None 
Pedestrian level of stress: N/A 
Bicycle level of stress: N/A 
 

A good jobs/housing balance – a ratio between 1 and 
1.5 – reduces traffic congestion. Higher numbers 
indicate the need for more housing and lower numbers 
indicate an employment need. 

Residents who live or work less than ½ mile from 
critical services have more transportation choices. 
Walking and biking reduces congestion by taking cars off 
the road, while supporting a healthy and active lifestyle.   
 

Level of Stress considers facility type, number of vehicle 
lanes, and speed. Roads with G or PG ratings better 
support bicyclists and pedestrians of all ages and comfort 
levels.  
 

Nearest police station: 1.8 miles 
Nearest fire station: 2.7 miles 
 

Developments within 1.5 miles of police and fire 
stations ensure that emergency services are more 
efficient and reduce the cost of these important public 
services.   

http://www.compassidaho.org/
mailto:info@compassidaho.org
http://www.compassidaho.org/dashboard/devreview.htm


Fiscal Impact Analysis Supplemental for the 
Development Review Checklist

The purpose of the fiscal impact analysis is to better estimate expected revenues and costs to local 
governments as a result of new development so that the public, stakeholders, and the decision-
makers can better manage growth. Capital and operating expenditures are determined by various 
factors that determine service and infrastructure needs, including persons per household, student 
generation rates, lot sizes, street frontages, vehicle trip and trip adjustment factors, average trip 
lengths, construction values, income, discretionary spending, and employment densities.

The COMPASS Development Checklist considers the level of fiscal benefits, how many public agencies 
benefit or are burdened by additional growth, and how long the proposal will take to achieve a fiscal 
break-even point, if at all. More information about the COMPASS Fiscal Impact Tool is available at: 
www.compassidaho.org/prodserv/fiscalimpact.htm.

Overall Net Fiscal Impact

Net Fiscal Impact, by Agency

City

Highway District

Break Even:

County

School District



Communities in Motion 2050 Development Review
The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) 
is the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for Ada and Canyon 
Counties. COMPASS has developed this review as a tool for local 
governments to evaluate whether land developments are consistent with 
the goals of Communities in Motion 2050 (CIM 2050), the regional long-
range transportation plan for Ada and Canyon Counties. This checklist is 
not intended to be prescriptive, but rather a guidance document based 
on CIM 2050 goals.

Development Name:

CIM Vision Category:

CIM Corridor:

Safety  
Level of Stress measures how 
safe and comfortable a bicyclist 
or pedestrian would feel on a 
corridor and considers multimodal 
infrastructure number of vehicle 
lanes, and travel speeds.

Pedestrian level of stress 
Bicycle level of stress

Economic Vitality  
These tools evaluate whether the 
location of the proposal supports 
economic vitality by growing near 
existing public services. 

Activity Center Access  
Farmland Preservation 
Net Fiscal Impact   
Within CIM Forecast

Convenience
Residents who live or work 
less than 1/2 mile from critical 
services have more transportation 
choices, especially for vulnerable 
populations.

Nearest bus stop
Nearest public school
Nearest public park

Quality of Life
Checked boxes indicate that 
additional information is attached.

Active Transportation

Automobile Transportation

Public Transportation

Roadway Capacity

New Jobs:

Improves performance

Comments:
Communities in Motion 2050 

2020 Change in Motion Report
Development Review Process

Web: www.compassidaho.org    
Email: info@compassidaho.org

New Households:

Reduces performanceDoes not improve or 
reduce performance



Land Uses to Support Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation 

Land use decisions can support the safety and comfort of bicyclists and pedestrians. A robust mix of 
nearby housing, jobs, and services can: 

Promote safe and comfortable walking and biking by 
reducing the number of vehicles on the road 

Reduce the distance between housing and services, 
especially for vulnerable populations 

Reduce the requirement for large and costly parking 
facilities  

Land use mix can either be horizontal or vertical. A 
horizontal mix indicates a variety of uses across a neighborhood, while vertical mix refers to different uses 
within the same building or lot. To measure land use mix, consider how many different uses (e.g., 
residential, office, retail, industrial, service, entertainment, education, health, etc.) are within each 
community or area. Higher mixes reflect more convenient access to a wide range of jobs and services.  

Some steps to take to increase bicycle and pedestrian accommodations are:  

✓ Provide sidewalks and pathways between horizontal mixed use areas to promote walking and 
biking between areas. 

 
Place residential uses near services such as parks, schools, grocery stores, or employment 
centers. 

 Place higher-density residential uses close to employment, bus service, schools, or parks. 

 

 

Credit: Lakeland Village Plan 



Fiscal Impact Analysis Supplemental for the 
Development Review Checklist

The purpose of the fiscal impact analysis is to better estimate expected revenues and costs to local 
governments as a result of new development so that the public, stakeholders, and the decision-
makers can better manage growth. Capital and operating expenditures are determined by various 
factors that determine service and infrastructure needs, including persons per household, student 
generation rates, lot sizes, street frontages, vehicle trip and trip adjustment factors, average trip 
lengths, construction values, income, discretionary spending, and employment densities.

The COMPASS Development Checklist considers the level of fiscal benefits, how many public agencies 
benefit or are burdened by additional growth, and how long the proposal will take to achieve a fiscal 
break-even point, if at all. More information about the COMPASS Fiscal Impact Tool is available at: 
www.compassidaho.org/prodserv/fiscalimpact.htm.

Overall Net Fiscal Impact

Net Fiscal Impact, by Agency

City

Highway District

Break Even:

County

School District



From: Julie Collette
To: Jennica Reynolds
Subject: Re: Agency Notice - Pheasant Heights PZ
Date: Tuesday, March 29, 2022 8:31:30 AM

To Whom It May Concern at Canyon County Planning & Zoning:

Good morning,

On behalf of our Greater Middleton Parks & Rec Board of Directors and
Executive Director, Tim O'Meara, we wanted to reach out to you and let
Canyon County know that GMPRD is taking a stance on the growth
happening in Middleton and the surrounding areas. 

We are opposed to any further developments coming into Middleton at this
time. Not only are the parks and recreation districts affected, but the
school district and cemetery district as well, are struggling to keep up with
the growth. The legislature has not added parks and recreation districts,
nor school  or cemetery districts to the legal verbiage, allowing the impact
fee funding to help incur the costs from the additional growth happening
around the city. 

We are seeing high numbers of registrations at our sporting events coming
from out of state. We have multiple sports clubs and recreation programs
needing grass space to play on. We are using an outdated building to play
sports in one gym and could use at least two more gyms. We are also
seeing higher vandalism this year. We have already spent over $5,000
dollars on new camera systems at our parks and buildings to try to keep
up with the increase in crime in our little town. Last year we were at 419%
over budget for vandalism - spending almost $900 dollars on repairs. This
year alone we are already at 110% of our increased vandalism budget,
spending over $550 dollars on repairs thus far. However, in 2019 we only
used 12.9% of our vandalism repairs budget. Spending only $25 dollars on
repairs. These numbers alone speak VOLUMES as to what is happening in
our area and the negative impact our growth will continue to have,
especially on our youth. Having positive sports programs, open play space,
and local community classes helps keep kids out of trouble. We are
outgrowing our resources at a record pace!

In order for growth to continue and to gain our support, developers will
have to step up in some way to aid these growth related issues and
problems. 

Thank you for listening to our concerns.

Kind Regards,
Julie-

mailto:gmprdjulie@gmail.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com


Julie Collette
District Clerk II/HR 
Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District
310 N. Hawthorne Ave., Middleton, ID 83644
208-585-3461
gmprd.org

On Thu, Mar 24, 2022 at 5:09 PM Jennica Reynolds <jreynolds@middletoncity.com> wrote:

Please see the attached Agency Notice.

 

 

Jennica Reynolds

 

Jennica Reynolds

Deputy Clerk, Planning

City of Middleton

208-585-3133

jreynolds@middletoncity.com

 

http://greatermiddletonparksandrec.org/
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com
mailto:jreynolds@middletoncity.com








EXHIBIT “F” 
 

Public Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Brian R. Sheets     24184 Willis Creek St. • Caldwell, Idaho 83607 • 503-830-1448  
brsheets@gmail.com 

 
April 10, 2022 

 
VIA EMAIL ONLY 
 
City of Middleton 
Planning and Zoning Department 
P.O. Box 487 
Middleton, ID 83644 
Email: jreynolds@middletoncity.com 
  
RE: Opposition Comment to Pheasant Heights Subdivision 
 
Dear Middleton Planning and Zoning Commissioners: 
 
 My family and children live on Willis Creek Road, directly to the north of the planned 
development project proposed to be heard at the April 11, 2022 Planning and Zoning hearing. 
We are opposed to this project in its entirety. Given the adjacent location to the High School and 
the cumulative impacts of already underway development located in the immediate vicinity, 
unknown traffic safety impacts cannot be adequately addressed prior to approving this project. 
The Pheasant Heights Subdivision conflicts with the Comprehensive Plan, and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission should recommend denial of the application. 
 
 This will be the fourth hearing for me to attend for these parcels. The first hearing being 
the rezone to R-1 at Canyon County on July 18, 2019.1 The second and third were tabled 
hearings at the City of Middleton on November 8, and December 6, 2021. This project has been 
a demonstration of inadequate preparation and changed circumstances, and is indicative of a 
project that will not go as planned, with a low confidence of meeting either City, or County 
standards coupled with no accountability or concern to the local residents from an out-of-state 
developer.  
 
I.  Traffic Concerns and Comprehensive Plan Conflicts 
 
 The local area is a hotbed of development. West Highlands Ranch subdivision located at 
Willis and Emmett Road has been developing hundreds of lots directly north of the High School. 
Stonehaven Subdivision and the new development directly south of the High School are 
additional developments not fully completed, and like the proposal, are all zoned R-3. These 
planned, and not yet fully developed projects represent thousands of trips that not only affect the 
local traffic concerns, but add to, and further choke the local infrastructure and create delay, 
																																																													
1 Attachment 1 



Middleton Planning and Zoning 
Re: Opposition to Pheasant Heights Subdivision Annexation, Rezone, Prelim. Plat 
4/10/22 

2	
	

safety concerns, and are especially concerning given the close proximity to a High School with 
new drivers and children that walk to school.  
 
 These increased traffic concerns are located within the entirety of the region. This is 
apparent at I-84 exit 25: an exit without automated traffic controls that dangerously backs up the 
northbound off ramp back onto the freeway. The intersection of Highway 30 and Emmett road is 
an additional concern, and on March 10, 2022 experienced a fatal accident.2 Finally, the 
intersection of Highway 44 and Emmett road is concerning as well. At peak drive times, drivers 
experience significant delays from turning onto or off of Emmett Road. In witnessing several 
driving habits of motorists at the intersection, very risky turns have been observed where a driver 
hastily attempts to turn left onto Highway 44 off of Emmett, and with a High School full of new 
drivers and busses regularly using the intersection, it is only a matter of time before something 
tragic takes place.  
 
 In addition to the vehicular traffic concerns, pedestrian traffic in the area is being 
affected. The additional West Highlands development will already inject hundreds, if not 
thousands of trips into the area, causing increased stress on the area near the High School. My 
son Kyle Sheets walks to the High School, as it is only a short distance from our home. In his 
daily walk to school, he has routinely experienced close calls with inattentive drivers at the 
intersection of Willis and Emmett roads, and during the winter when he walks in the dark or in 
the fog, it is even more hazardous. As a parent, I fear every time I hear emergency sirens, or 
receive a pone call at 8:00 AM fearing he has been hurt or killed by a driver on his walk to a 
school only a few hundred yards away.  
 
 The unfortunate truth is that the area is saturated and unprepared for additional trip 
generating projects. Not only will it be dangerous for the residents already being overwhelmed 
with additional and dangerously uncontrolled construction and future residential traffic, but the 
new residents of these planned developments will also be injected into the foray.  
 
 Road improvements suggested by Canyon County Highway District No. 4 are inadequate 
to address the broader impacts that 147 residential lots will create, and the scope of the 
consideration is negligent by failing to address the impacts of development in the vicinity already 
approved. The mere improvement of half a lane of Emmett road is inadequate in its inception, as 
there is no discussion of immediate vicinity improvements other than impact fees into a slush 
fund for regional developments. These are not earmarked for the explicit impacts easily 
identified by this project, and the developer is not responsible for mitigating the impacts easily 
attributed to the proposal. This creates two distinct problems:  
 
																																																													
2 Attachment 2 



Middleton Planning and Zoning 
Re: Opposition to Pheasant Heights Subdivision Annexation, Rezone, Prelim. Plat 
4/10/22 

3	
	

1. The developer is free to impact the area negatively without adequately addressing 
mitigation directly attributable to the project. In essence, this creates a profit 
motive to generate the highest return on investment without respect to the easily 
identified externalities created. Mitigation could, and probably will exceed the 
fees assessed for the direct impacts, and therefore creates publicly-subsidized 
development that negatively impacts the preexisting residents. 

 
2. All of these mitigation strategies of assessing impact fees occur after the fact. It 

may be years or decades before enough fatalities build up or public will forces 
local bureaucrats to prioritize projects that address the prior development 
authorized without long-term consideration.  

 
These problems can be addressed by: 
 

1. Requiring a traffic impact study to include conditions not only in the immediate 
vicinity, but at major roadways and intersections easily identified in the region, in 
this case: Emmett Road with its intersections of Willis Road and the intersection 
of Highway 44; the intersection of Willis Road and Highway 30; the intersection 
of Highway 30 and Highway 44; and exit 25 on I-84. Additionally, sensitivity to 
High School traffic, pedestrian access, and new driver/bus traffic to be 
considered. 

 
2. MAKE THE DEVELOPER PAY FOR AND IMPLEMENT TRAFFIC 

MITIGATION IMPROVEMENTS DIRECTLY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 
PROJECT PRIOR TO AUTHORIZING ONE SHOVEL MOVING ON THEIR 
PROJECT. 

 
 Traffic is not only generated by the end result of the 147 lots being fully built, but the 
additional construction traffic of heavy machinery, earth moving equipment, and contractor 
traffic during the phased project. Traffic mitigation means ALL TRAFFIC MITIGATION, and 
must be addressed in order to remedy the additional burdens experienced by preexisting 
residents. 
 
 In total, the proposed project negatively impacts the traffic and safety of the local area 
without adequately addressing it. This is in conflict to the comprehensive plan in the following 
ways: 
 
Transportation Goal 3,  



Middleton Planning and Zoning 
Re: Opposition to Pheasant Heights Subdivision Annexation, Rezone, Prelim. Plat 
4/10/22 

4	
	

Objective A: Plan and develop a safe system of roads, bike lanes, sidewalks 
and pathways. 
Objective B: Reduce vehicle congestion and encourage walking and bicycling. 
 
 The proposal conflicts with the Comprehensive Plan by increasing traffic in an already 
over-planned area that has not received any additional traffic mitigation actions. The additional 
traffic directly adjacent to a High School will increase traffic and increase hazards with right-in, 
right-out access to the area requiring unusual traffic patterns that direct traffic directly south to 
the uncontrolled intersection of the principal arterial identified Emmett Road and Highway 44 in 
conflict with Objective A. The City is unable to respond to easily anticipated traffic hazards at 
regional areas, and cannot adequately respond to the project’s impacts. There are no retail, 
commercial, or recreation areas to walk to, and all traffic will be vehicle traffic in conflict with 
Objective B.  
 
Schools Goal 13 
Objective A: Minimize vehicle traffic congestion and obstruction on roads abutting 
school sites. 
 
 The proposal conflicts with Objective A by pressing 147 housing units and the associated 
construction activities directly adjacent to Middleton High School. The area has preexisting 
development projects that have been added without adequate mitigation for the additional traffic 
and this additional project creates additional traffic congestion with additional trips with minimal 
to no mitigation. 
 
Population Goal 14 
Preserve a high quality of life and livability in Middleton. 
Objective A: Plan for the projected population by providing sufficient services 
and amenities. 
 
 The services and amenities are absolutely lacking with the proposal and the additional 
housing provided without capacity. Additional traffic creates a safety risk without mitigation, 
and reduces the quality of life and livability in Middleton. How the City Council and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission can continue to approve high-density housing in contradiction 
to this goal is unconscionable. The goal states to “preserve a high quality of life.” Unmitigated 
growth is in conflict with this goal.  
 
 Because of the conflicts with the Comprehensive Plan, this project should not be re-
zoned to R-3, and these conflicts are fatal to the overall annexation plan and preliminary 
plat. The Planning and Zoning Commission should find that the proposal conflicts with the 



Middleton Planning and Zoning 
Re: Opposition to Pheasant Heights Subdivision Annexation, Rezone, Prelim. Plat 
4/10/22 

5	
	

comprehensive plan in the above ways and deny the application. In identifying what would 
satisfy the commission to gain approval, it would be a comprehensive traffic impact study to 
include already approved developments with the cumulative impacts and mitigate those impacts 
in construction to finality prior to breaking earth on the project, as would be contained in a new 
development agreement. Otherwise, the applicant can submit a preliminary plat with Canyon 
County for its already recently approved R-1 County zoning. 
 
II.  Nuisance Concerns 
 
 This area has been subject to intense development, and with it, intense nuisances that 
would only be amplified by approving this project. At its core, Idaho Code 52-111 states that  
 

“Anything which is injurious to health or morals, or indecent, or offensive to the 
senses, or an obstruction to the free use of property, so as to interfere with the 
comfortable enjoyment of life or property, is a nuisance and the subject of an 
action.” 

 
The Highlands West subdivision development has demonstrated the lack of adequate remedy for 
the disturbances caused by unmitigated growth. Over the course of two years, our neighborhood 
has been woken up at the literal crack of dawn by heavy earth moving equipment. Inquiries to 
Middleton City Police have been instructive, stating that the construction activity is permitted 
from dawn to dusk. This means that like last June 2021, earthmoving activity was allowed to 
commence before 6:00 AM. Blaring back-up sirens and vibratory rollers have plagued the 
comfortable enjoyment of all of the residents of the neighborhood from a construction site over a 
quarter-mile away. Add to this construction delays from roadway utility cuts and engine braking 
from dirt hauling along Emmett Road have transformed this area into a two year long 
construction zone. An additional project proposed over multiple years with the option for 
extensions would only degrade the area more.  
 
 Should the Commission decide to ignore the conflicts with the Comprehensive Plan as 
discussed earlier, the Commission should include in the development agreement conditions to 
mitigate nuisance to the surrounding community including hours of operation, noise mitigation, 
light pollution mitigation, and load securing requirements.  
 

1. Hours of construction operation from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday through Friday; 
2. To the extent possible avoid lighting that projects upwards by prohibiting streetlights or 

using shaded fixtures and incorporate this into the CC&Rs: we can still see the stars on 
clear nights and we would like to keep doing so. 



Middleton Planning and Zoning 
Re: Opposition to Pheasant Heights Subdivision Annexation, Rezone, Prelim. Plat 
4/10/22 

6	
	

3. Install noise barrier fencing on the north side of the property to shield construction and 
eventual residential noise from disturbing our community 

4. Prohibit contractors from engine braking down Willis Street or Emmett Road when 
approaching the worksite 

5. Ensure mud and construction debris are not left on arterial roads 
6. Repeated violations of the above constitute a breach, triggering the same remedies of 

Article IV of the development agreement. 
 

III. Summary 
 
 In summary, the proposed project conflicts with the Comprehensive Plan and negatively 
impacts the surrounding community, adding to a continued cycle of unmitigated development. 
The staff report cherry-picks Comprehensive Plan goals in order to provide a route for approval 
while ignoring serious deficiencies and outright conflicts.  
 
 I have heard multiple times that we are experiencing “growing pains” within the 
community due to unrestricted growth. Pain is an indication of when something is injured. When 
there is an injury, there needs to be time to assess the problem, and allow adequate steps and time 
to fix it. Adding more of the same problem to an already overtaxed system is not the answer, 
rather it exacerbates the symptoms, increases conflict, and leads to a decreased quality of life. 
Before this projects continues, the preexisting issues must be addressed. I know this Commission 
has heard repeatedly the discontent with unmitigated development, and we are all paying the 
price for others to profit. I appreciate your time in hearing these concerns we all are dealing with. 
 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
      Brian R. Sheets 
 



Brian Sheets
Attachment 1



Crash near Middleton causes collision with forklift that kills
52-year-old Idaho man

Ian Max Stevenson, Idaho Statesman

!  Published at 9:04 pm, March 10, 2022

MIDDLETON (Idaho Statesman) — A three-vehicle crash northwest of Middleton on Thursday afternoon
killed a 52-year-old Caldwell man, according to the Idaho State Police.

At around 12:24 p.m. at Old Highway 30 and Willis Road, three vehicles were approaching an intersection
when a juvenile driving westbound in a pickup truck on Willis Road failed to yield, according to an ISP
press release, and collided with a tow truck traveling northbound.

A forklift loaded on the back of the tow truck came off, and a southbound SUV “collided with it,” the release
said. The SUV’s driver died at the scene.

The juvenile driver of the pickup and a passenger were taken to a hospital, as was a passenger traveling
in the SUV. Their conditions are not known. All vehicle occupants were wearing seat belts.

The crash remains under investigation, Idaho State Police said.

SUBMIT A CORRECTION

Idaho

You May Like by TaboolaSponsored Links

hokrlobe

Unique And Magical Metal Windmill - Free Shipping Worldwide!
Shop Now

https://www.eastidahonews.com/author/EIN_Staff
https://www.eastidahonews.com/author/EIN_Staff
https://www.eastidahonews.com/author/EIN_Staff
https://www.eastidahonews.com/author/EIN_Staff
https://www.idahostatesman.com/news/local/traffic/article259293419.html#storylink=cpy
https://www.idahostatesman.com/news/local/traffic/article259293419.html#storylink=cpy
https://www.eastidahonews.com/submit-a-correction/?headline=Crash%20near%20Middleton%20causes%20collision%20with%20forklift%20that%20kills%2052-year-old%20Idaho%20man&url=https://www.eastidahonews.com/2022/03/crash-near-middleton-causes-collision-with-forklift-that-kills-52-year-old-idaho-man/
https://www.eastidahonews.com/submit-a-correction/?headline=Crash%20near%20Middleton%20causes%20collision%20with%20forklift%20that%20kills%2052-year-old%20Idaho%20man&url=https://www.eastidahonews.com/2022/03/crash-near-middleton-causes-collision-with-forklift-that-kills-52-year-old-idaho-man/
https://www.eastidahonews.com/regional/idaho/
https://www.eastidahonews.com/regional/idaho/
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=eastidahonews-eastidahonews&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbnails-a:after_content-2:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=eastidahonews-eastidahonews&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbnails-a:after_content-2:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=eastidahonews-eastidahonews&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbnails-a:after_content-2:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=eastidahonews-eastidahonews&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbnails-a:after_content-2:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=eastidahonews-eastidahonews&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbnails-a:after_content-2:
https://popup.taboola.com/en/?template=colorbox&utm_source=eastidahonews-eastidahonews&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=thumbnails-a:after_content-2:
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
https://www.hokrlobe.com/products/unique-and-magical-metal-windmill---free-shipping-worldwide!?utm_source=taboola&utm_medium=referral&tblci=GiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I#tblciGiA75zhcfWxZtBgga6j0uaoh6cimVWs32PO7hix8KD2GoCDrnlgo8ZXZmPCT5q8I
Brian Sheets
Attachment 2



Jeff A. Heindel  13229 Willis Road Caldwell, Idaho 83607 
  jeffaheindel@gmail.com 

 
 

May 18, 2022 
 
City of Middleton, Idaho 
City Council Department / Mayor Steven Rule 
1103 West Main Street 
Middleton, Idaho 83644 
Via e-mail: 
 
srule@middletoncity.com 
chuggins@middletoncity.com  
rkiser@middletoncity.com  
tomeara@middletoncity.com  
dmurray@middletoncity.com  
 
I offer this Letter of Support for applications provided by Infinite Real Estate for annexation/zone 
change, preliminary plat, and development agreement regarding the Pheasant Heights 
Subdivision (0 Emmett Road; Tax Parcel Nos. R34445012A2, R34445012A0, R34445012B0 and 
34445012A1).  Importantly, I am a landowner immediately west of - - and adjacent to - - the target 
property and will share a common fence-line with this property and continue to raise cows and 
irrigate pasture long after this property is developed.  
 
As a native Idahoan and 15-year resident of the City of Middleton (the Caldwell-kind; located west 
of Emmett Road), I share common local concerns tied to rapid population growth, associated 
school/infrastructure impacts, as well as increased traffic congestion on our small-town roadways.  
While some in the community would like to wrongly suggest that retaining this target 
development’s R1 zoning (largely; see C1 below) would magically prevent the same “growth” 
concerns noted above (when surrounding properties east of Emmett Road are already being 
developed as R-3), I offer the following positive attributes in support of this development: 
 

• Note that the easternmost parcel is currently zoned C1 (Service Commercial); a zone 
change to R3 will actually reduce “growth” concerns by minimizing the resulting traffic, 
noise, and congestion that would otherwise come with C1 development. 

• Given that common growth concerns focus on already-taxed (read: existing) road and 
utilities infrastructure, the proposed request clearly identifies planned solutions that both 
mitigate and improve the future growth requirements as well as addressing current 
planning initiatives (development-provided road improvements [Annexation Plan]; 
westward-extension of City water and sewer [Middleton Comprehensive Plan]; higher 
density near schools [Middleton Comprehensive Plan]).   

• As a parent of children that grew up in this community, the likelihood of these same 
children residing here in the future as homeowners (given our lack of affordable housing, 
current poor economy, and even-poorer job market and associated wage structure) is 
further reduced as 1-5 acre “designer” developments (X,000 square-foot extravagance) 
and mini-ranches continue to be the dominant trend; little hope for single-wage families in 
this community to ever fulfill the American dream of home-ownership when there are not 
smaller, “more affordable” houses available in greater supply. 

• City (County, State) tax coffers fund growth and development; this is a pretty simple math 
exercise if we think about fees and tax revenues associated with the two potential options 

mailto:srule@middletoncity.com
mailto:chuggins@middletoncity.com
mailto:rkiser@middletoncity.com
mailto:tomeara@middletoncity.com
mailto:dmurray@middletoncity.com


Jeff A. Heindel  13229 Willis Road Caldwell, Idaho 83607 
  jeffaheindel@gmail.com 

(R1 resulting in ~ 25-40 lots [uncertain given C1 status of some land; let’s assume 40]; R3 
resulting in 147 lots [proposed]): 

o City Transportation Impact Fee ($5,050/permit current) 
 40 building permits = 40 * $5,050 = $202,000 to future road/intersection 

improvements 
 147 building permits = 147 * $5,050 = $742,350 to future road/intersection 

improvements 
o Annual Property Taxation on a Per Unit (Improvements) Basis 

 40 mini-ranches (and associated X,000 square-foot housing extravagance; 
“improvement value” per tax billing) with assumed mean “improvement 
value” tax assessment of “XXX,XXX” (something likely 2x/3x greater than 
“lesser-appealing” high[er]-density houses); assume 40 properties @ 
$800,000 mean assessment = $32M total assessed value 

 147 high(er)-density homes (read: “more affordable” … yet this is even 
difficult to say given the current real estate market) with assumed mean 
“improvement value” tax assessment of $400,000 (likely low); assume 147 
properties @ $400,000 mean assessment = $58.8M total assessed value    

 
While additional positive impacts and contributions that could ultimately come from this 
rezone/annexation are notable (and/or arguable), it is important to focus on the key core findings 
of the City’s Planning Staff (from Middleton P&Z “Snapshot Summary” developed for the April 
11, 2022, P&Z Commission Hearing Date):                   
 

• The property to the east is within City limits and zoned R-3 (Single-Family 
Residential) 

• As required by MCC 5-4-11-2 the Applicant will bring both City water and sewer to and 
through the property … the Developer will also build a regional lift station to service not 
only this project, but the entire region. The size and scope of the lift station will be 
determined by the City Public Works Director and City Engineer 

• Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three of the annexation 
requirements. (1) the property is contiguous to City limits (2) City sewer and water can be 
extended to serve the site (3) the annexation is orderly and economical because the parcel 
is adjacent to the City in an area of planned growth 

• Developer is paying to extend City services and improve the roadways in and adjacent to 
the project 

• Developer will also pay a proportionate share towards intersections and traffic 
improvements identified in the Traffic Impact Study 

• Planning Staff finds that the zone change will not adversely affect the City’s ability to 
deliver services and that the zone change is in harmony with the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan 

• Agreement w/Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map: Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map because the project parcel is designated 
“Residential” on the Land Use Map, which matches the residential use planned for the site 

• Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and 
Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows: 

a. Goal 1 Objective A: Be proactive, not reactive, in planning, preparing, 
budgeting, and delivering city services to properties now and reasonably expected 
in the future. 
b. Goal 2: Preserve and protect private property rights as required by Idaho law. 



Jeff A. Heindel  13229 Willis Road Caldwell, Idaho 83607 
  jeffaheindel@gmail.com 

c. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in 
light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat. 
d. Goals 4 and 5: The project will establish a good quality of life based on health, 
safety and general welfare or residents with development that pays through impact 
fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is 
installed. 
e. Goal 6: The project will provide public facilities and services that work for the 
community’s needs in the area of city impact by expanding water, sewer, and road 
systems in an orderly manner consistent with population growth in the City. 
 

In closing, I again note the same, shared local concerns with pending growth and change in our 
wonderful community ... yet fail to see the benefits of retaining this target property as a combined 
R1/C1 development when the developer has clearly addressed the Administrative (and State 
Code) requirements and has clearly tried to “do the right thing” with regards to eliminating and/or 
reducing both community and neighbor concerns.  I am available to discuss this matter in greater 
detail at the e-mail address above. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Jeff A. Heindel 



EXHIBIT “G” 
 

P&Z Commission Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law & 
Recommendation (FCR) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 









Ordinance No.  671 Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 671 
 

(Pheasant Heights Subdivision Annexation & Rezone – Parcel Nos.  
R34445012A2, R34445012A0, R34445012B0 and 34445012A1)  

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, ANNEXING 
TO THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; ESTABLISHING THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL PROPERTY TO R-3 (SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL); DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS 
PROVIDED BY LAW; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIDDLETON, COUNTY OF CANYON, STATE OF IDAHO: 
 

Section 1. That the Middleton City Council, following the public notice and 
hearing procedures set forth in the Local Land Use Planning Act (Idaho Code, Title 67, 
Chapter  65)  and Middleton City Code Title 1, Chapter 14, approved the Annexation and 
Rezone of the Pheasant Heights Subdivision (Parcel Nos. R34445012A2, 
R34445012A0, R34445012B0 and 34445012A1) at a public hearing held on October 19, 
2022. 

 
Section 2. The following described property, commonly known as 13236 

Greenwell Lane and 0 Emmett Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R34445012A2, R34445012A0, 
R34445012B0 and 34445012A1), comprising approximately 54 acres, more or less, is 
contiguous to the City of Middleton, Idaho; the annexation enables the orderly 
development of the City; and the applicant has requested that the property described 
in Exhibit “A” should be annexed into the City of Middleton and zoned R-3 (Single Family 
Residential): 

 
See legal description attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 
Section 3. That the above-described property is hereby annexed into the 

corporate limits of the City of Middleton and zoned R-3 (Single Family Residential). 

Section 4. That the City Engineer and the Planning & Zoning Official of the City of 
Middleton, Idaho, are hereby instructed to so designate the same above-described 
property on the official zoning map and other area maps of the City of Middleton, Idaho 
as lying within the city limits and zoned R-3. 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, orders or parts thereof in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed, rescinded and annulled. 



Ordinance No.  671 Page 2 

 

 

Section 6. This ordinance shall be in full force and in effect from and after its 
passage, approval and publication, according to law. 

Section 7. The Clerk of the City of Middleton, Idaho shall, within I0 days following 
the effective date of this ordinance, duly file a certified copy of this ordinance and a map 
prepared in a draftsman-like manner plainly and clearly designating the boundaries of the 
City of Middleton, including the land herein annexed, with the following officials of the 
County of Canyon, State of Idaho, to-wit: the Recorder, Auditor, Treasurer and Assessor 
and shall file simultaneously a certified copy of this ordinance with the State Tax 
Commission of the State of Idaho, all in compliance with Idaho Code§ 63-215. 

 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ___ day 
of ___________, 2022. 

 
 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ____ 
day of _________, 2022. 
 

        Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________   ____________________________ 
Steven J. Rule      Becky Crofts 
Mayor, City of Middleton    City Clerk 

 



 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Legal Description of Annexed Property 











 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Middleton City Council is scheduled to hold a public hearing at 5:30 
p.m. Wednesday, October 19, 2022 at City Hall, 1103 W Main Street, Middleton Idaho to receive public 
comments and consider approving the following addition of fees to the Approved City of Middleton Fee 
Schedule beginning October 20, 2022. The fee increases or new fees are necessary to cover increased 
costs associated with these programs/services. 
 

 Current Fee 
PROPOSED 

FEE 

SUBDIVISION     

Additional Construction Walk Through 
Reinspection       $300 per trip 

   

   

   

   
Publish October 4 and October 11, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Please send Affidavit of Publication to: 
 
Jennica Reynolds, Deputy Clerk 
City of Middleton 
P.O. Box 487 
Middleton, ID 83644 
 
Thank You. 



288880

c/o ISj Payment Processing Center
PO Box 1570, 

Pocatello,ID  83204
Ph.  (208) 465-8129 Fax:  (907) 452-5054

ADVERTISING PROOF

Discount: $0.00
Surcharge: $0.00
Credits: $0.00

We Appreciate Your Business!

Gross:$65.08
 Paid Amount:$0.00

 Amount Due:$65.08

Payments:
Date       Method                                       Card Type           Last 4 Digits                            Check    Amount

JENNICA REYNOLDS
1 MIDDLETON, CITY OF 
P.O. BOX 487 
MIDDLETON, ID  83644

BILLING DATE:     ACCOUNT NO:

09/30/22 23106

AD # DESCRIPTION START STOP TIMES AMOUNT
10/04/22 10/11/22 2 $65.08PH 10/19 - WALK THRO288880



AD# 288880AD# 

LEGAL NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Middleton City Council 
is scheduled to hold a public hearing at 5:30 p.m. Wednesday, 
October 19, 2022 at City Hall, 1103 W Main Street, Middleton 
Idaho to receive public comments and consider approving the 
following addition of fees to the Approved City of Middleton Fee 
Schedule beginning October 20, 2022. The fee increases or 
new fees are necessary to cover increased costs associated 
with these programs/services.

 Current Proposed
SUBDIVISION Fee Fee 
Additional Construction Walk  $300 per trip 
Through Reinspection 

October 4, 11, 2022  288880


	Pheasant Hgts Staff Report CC 10-14-22.pdf
	Pheasant Heights Subdivision
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Public Hearing: October 19, 2022
	B. Project Description: Residential subdivision with 147 single family buildable lots and 12 common lots on 54.06 acres of vacant land located at 0 Emmett Road and 13236 Greenwell Lane (Tax Parcels Nos. R34445012A2, R34445012A0, R34445012B0 and 344450...
	C. Application Requests: Applicant, Amy Johnson of Infinite Real Estate, has submitted three applications: (1) Annexation/Rezone, (2) Preliminary Plat, and (3) Development Agreement.
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The project parcel is comprised of four parcels with two homestead sites. Most of the land is vacant and has been used for farming for a number of years. The property is currently located in Canyon County and z...
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	Primary access to the subdivision will be through 9th Street to the south.  Access on Emmett Road will be right in/right out only. The plat shows three stub roads along the western border for future extension of the City to the west.
	Developer will be required to improve, at its own cost, the 50’ half road portion of Emmett Road as well at the extension of 9th Street from Faison Subdivision through the project parcel.
	Middleton requires Development “to pay for itself” so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost of developing roads and infrastructure.  In light of this, Developer/builders will pay $742,350.00 in Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fees by the tim...
	Applicant has also completed a Traffic Study, and pursuant to the impact percentages set forth in the study, Applicant will pay $138,563.00 in additional “pro-rata traffic fees” pursuant to MCC 5-4-3. These fees cover the development’s direct impact o...
	Developer/Builder will pay a total of $880,913.00 toward traffic improvements in and around the City of Middleton.
	G. Traffic Signal at Emmett Road & State Hwy 44:  Much of the project’s traffic will use the intersection of Emmett Road and Hwy 44. That intersection is a failing intersection. For that reason, City cannot collect Mid-Star Transportation Fees for the...
	City also does not have sufficient funds at its disposal or in its budget (approximately $1.7 million) to design and construct the traffic signal.
	ITD has stated recently that it has resumed its environmental studies of the Hwy 44 corridor, and it will not complete those studies for seven to 10 years.  Until the studies are completed, ITD cannot design or install any permanent traffic control at...
	However, a number of private developers, including the Pheasant Heights Developer, are collaborating together and working with ITD, CHD4 and the City to design and construct an interim traffic signal at the Emmett/44 intersection. The private develope...
	This collaboration between private developers has been incorporated into the proposed Development Agreement (“DA”) for Pheasant Heights.  In a nutshell, the DA notes the private collaboration and provides that the Pheasant Heights Developer cannot sub...
	Therefore, even if City Council approves this project, no one will be allowed to build and move into a home until the intersection of Emmett Road & Hwy 44 is improved with a sufficient traffic control.
	H. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: No pathways or amenities are required by the Comprehensive Plan’s Transportation, Schools & Recreation Map.  However, Developer has proposed a large park with micro-paths, playground, open grassy area, and picnic area.
	Developer has provided 5.5% open space, which exceeds the 5% minimum required by MCC 5-4-10-10.
	Developer will also construct a missing portion of sidewalk located outside of the project area in order to complete the sidewalk that has been left unfinished for a number of years.  This off-site work will assist children in reaching the crosswalk a...
	I. Schools:  This proposed project is part of the Middleton School District #134.  At the September 12, 2022, Planning & Zoning Meeting, Superintendent Marc Gee gave a presentation on the status of the School District.  He reported that Heights Elemen...
	When asked what the District intends to do now that the recent school bond has failed, Superintendent Gee indicated that they have some tools and solutions at their disposal. They are currently considering the following:
	1. Re-drawing the boundary for elementary schools so they can move children around to better equalize the capacity and population of each school.
	2. Implementing year-round school. (He emphasized that they are simply exploring this option.)
	3. Implementing a.m./p.m. school.
	4. Bringing in more portables and teachers.
	5. Adding on to, or remodeling, existing schools.
	6. Formulating more bonds that will be passed by the electorate in the future.
	MSD #134 Superintendent, Marc Gee, submitted a comment to this application after meeting with the Applicant. Among other things, Superintendent Gee noted that the traffic signal at Emmett & SH44 will help the school district because it will help contr...
	J. Police:  If annexed into Middleton, the Middleton City Police will be responsible for patrolling and protecting the Pheasant Heights community.  The Developer/Builder will pay a Police Impact fee of $304.00 for each building permit it receives.  Th...
	Of note, even if this subdivision is not approved and a County subdivision is built in its place, the Middleton Police Department will still patrol the area and probably be the first to respond to any incidences because of its proximity to an arterial...
	K. Middleton Rural Fire District: The subject property is in the Middleton Rural Fire District. Developer/Builders will pay a Fire Protection Impact Fee of $849 at the time of each building permit to cover any impacts the subdivision will have on the ...
	L. Annexation and Zone Change: Applicants are requesting that the 54 acre project parcel be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change from County R-1, R-R, Agricultural, and C-1 to the City R-3 Zone (Single Family Residential).
	There are two findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits and (2) the annexation is deemed to be an “orderly development” of the City allowing “efficient and economical extension” of...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before the Council can approve the application: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho ...
	STAFF FINDINGS:
	With respect to annexation, Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets the 1st criteria of contiguity.
	As to the 2nd annexation criteria, Planning Staff finds that the proposed annexation is orderly and an efficient extension of City Services.  Specifically, Police and Fire protection can be extended to serve the site because the additional protection ...
	As to the extension of the transportation system & roadway, Developer will pay transportation impacts and pro-rata traffic fees to cover its proportion of impact on the roadway system.  However, because Emmett Road & Hwy 44 is a failing intersection, ...
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver services for the reasons already stated directly above.
	A rezone also requires a finding that the project will not be in conflict with the City’s comprehensive plan.  Planning Staff finds that the Pheasant Heights Subdivision is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan, but rather, is in harmony with th...
	M. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows three phases of construction.
	The plat complies with all dimensional standards and codes of the City of Middleton, which means it meets the sole criteria required for an approval by City Council. No variances are requested.
	[A full-size copy of the preliminary plat is attached to this Staff Report as Exhibit “B”.)
	N. Development Agreement: Annexation/Rezone generally require a Development Agreement. Applicant and City Staff have used the City’s form for the DA, and have added the following conditions of development to Section 3 of the DA:
	Sec. 3.1 & 3.2: Developer to complete all frontage/road improvements adjacent to the project.
	Sec. 3.3: Developer to construct project generally consistent with Concept Plan attached to the DA.
	Sec. 3.4: Developer to pay all pro-rata traffic fees prior to final plat approval for phase 1.
	Sec. 3.4.1: Developer cannot obtain a building permit until a sufficient traffic control is constructed at Emmett & SH44.  If Developer participates in the design and construction of the site, Developer is entitled to a credit against any pro-rata tra...
	Sec. 3.5: Developer shall build a sewer lift station to serve the project site. If the City, in its sole discretion, decides that a regional lift station is required, then Developer shall construct a regional lift station.  Developer shall be reimburs...
	Sec. 3.6: Developer has 4 years to obtain phase 1 final plat approval (after 2 extensions are approved). Developer must then bring each phase thereafter to final plat within 4 years (which includes two extensions).  If Developer fails to meet these ti...
	Section 3.7: Developer shall provide the following amenities:  large playground with benches/seating area, at least two ramadas with picnic tables, micro-pathway, pocket park with seating areas.  [Proposed Development Agreement attached as Exhibit “C”]
	O. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map: Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the project parcel is designated “Residential” on the Land Use Map, which matches the residential use planned for the site.
	Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows:
	a. Goal 1 & Annexation: New development/annexation will be required to pay for improvements necessitated by its impacts on City Services.  Developer will pay for its proportionate impacts on parks, police, fire, and traffic via impact fees.  Developer...
	b. Comprehensive Plan Element “Annexation” (Page 18 of 68):  The City of Middleton is getting boxed in by County and Star subdivisions.  Annexation of Pheasant Heights is an efficient and economical expansion that prevents the external limitations on ...
	c. Goal 2 Private Property Rights:  allowing reasonable annexation and development will ensure that the City is not engaging in a “taking” of property, which is a violation of the Fifth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution. (Comp Plan/Private Property R...
	d. Goals 3 and 5: Provide variety of safe transportation services and facilities for vehicles and pedestrians.  Developer’s impact fees and pro-rata traffic fees will be used for the improvement and safety of surrounding roadways.  Additionally, Devel...
	e. Goal 6: expansion of public facilities: Developer’s project extends sewer and water utilities in an economical manner and improves existing roadways nearby.
	f. Goals 7 and 8: the addition of homes in Middleton increases the likelihood of bringing more commercial and industrial opportunities to Middleton, thereby lowering taxes for residents and creating employment opportunities.
	g. Goals 10, 22 and 23: the addition of parks and micro-paths and the completion of City sidewalks increases recreational activity and promotes walkability, social interaction, and health in the Community.
	h. Goal 11: the R-3 zoning matches the resident lifestyle in the area.  Of note, Strategy 2 encourages “…higher density housing near schools…etc.”
	i. Goal 14: plan for population growth by providing sufficient services.  Developer is improving roadways and paying toward future improvements to City streets. Developer is also responsible for building a regional sewer lift station that will serve t...
	P. Comments from City Engineer and City Staff:  City Engineer and Planner comments are attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Q. Comments from Agencies: Planning Staff has received comments from Middleton School District #134, Black Canyon Irrigation District, CHD4, COMPASS, Greater Middleton Parks & Recreation District, and Middleton Rural Fire Department. Copies of all com...
	R. Comments Received from Public: Comments from the public and surrounding residents are attached as Exhibit “F”.
	S. Applicant Information:  Application was received and accepted on March 19, 2021. The Applicant/Owner is Infinite Real Estate/Amy Johnson, 719 Blue Ridge Circle, Alpine, UT 84004.
	T. Notices:        Dates:
	Neighborhood Meeting      2/18/2021 & 1/31/2022
	Newspaper Notification      10/4/2022
	Radius notification mailed to Landowners within 500’  10/3/2022
	Circulation to Agencies      10/3/2022
	Sign Posting property       10/3/2022
	U. Applicable Codes and Standards: Idaho Statute, Title 67, Chapter 65 and Title 50, Chapters 2 & 13, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4.
	V. Planning & Zoning Recommendation:  The Planning & Zoning Commission considered these applications at an April 11, 2022, public hearing.  The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended denial of all three development applications.  There was discussio...
	The Commission stated that rezoning to City R-1 (1 home per gross acre) would result in the Commission recommending approval of the project.  (See copy of the Commission’s FCR attached as Exhibit “G”).
	W. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	Applications for annexation/rezone, development agreement, and preliminary plat are before City Council for consideration. When deciding whether to approve or deny a development application, City Councilmembers must base their decisions on Findings of...
	As to General Facts, Planning Staff has set forth the findings of facts above in parentheses. If City Council agrees with those Findings of Facts and agrees with the evidence presented at the public hearing, then the City Council can accept those fact...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions. Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requiremen...
	If City Council is inclined to recommend approval of the three applications based upon the above General Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions:
	1. City of Middleton municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	2. Developer to comply with all terms and provisions in the Development Agreement that was reviewed and approved by City Council at the public hearing.
	3. License/Access Easement pertaining to existing home (Lot15/Block3) must be terminated or abandoned prior to Phase 2 final plat approval.
	4. All pro-rata traffic fees due pursuant to MCC 5-4-3 must be paid prior to phase 1 final plat approval.
	5. Off-site installation of sidewalk between Willis Road roundabout and northern boundary of project to be completed prior to Phase 3 final plat approval.
	6. All City Engineer review comments, including comments dated October 13, 2022, are to be completed and approved.
	7. All City planner comments to be completed and approved.
	8. All Middleton Rural Fire District comments to be completed and approved.
	9. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time the City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Finally, if the Council denies the application, then pursuant to the Local Land Use Planning Act (Idaho Statute, Title 67, Chpt. 65) and Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain...
	Prepared by: Roberta Stewart – P&Z Official     Dated: 10/14/2022


	Ordinance 671 - Pheasant Hgts Annexation.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 671
	See legal description attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof by this reference.
	PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ___ day of ___________, 2022.
	APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ____ day of _________, 2022.
	Attest:
	__________________________   ____________________________
	Steven J. Rule      Becky Crofts Mayor, City of Middleton    City Clerk
	EXHIBIT A



	Image7_af_image: 
	Development: Pheasant Heights
	Image3_af_image: 
	Dropdown4: [Future Neighborhood]
	Text5: 0
	Text7: 147
	Image8_af_image: 
	Image9_af_image: 
	Image10_af_image: 
	Image11_af_image: 
	Image12_af_image: 
	Image1_af_image: 
	Image2_af_image: 
	Image4_af_image: 
	Image5_af_image: 
	Text16: Given the project’s proximity to Middleton High School, consider a safe pedestrian crossing of Emmett Road. Fireback Avenue is nearly 1/3 mile long. To ensure a safe pedestrian environment, consider a traffic calming device on Fireback Avenue. 
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Text1: Emmett Road
	Text6: 1 Year


